
 

 
 

RESOURCES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL AGENDA 

 
Date: 

 

Wednesday, 17 November 2021 

Time: 
 

10.00 am 

Venue: 
 

Council Chamber, Moorlands House, Leek 

9 November 2021 

 
PART 1 

1. Apologies for absence, if any  

2. Notification of Substitute Members, if any  

3. Minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 3 - 8) 

4. Urgent items of Business, if any (24 hours notice to be provided to the Chairman)  

5. Declaration of Interests:  

 i. Disclosable Pecuniary Interests; 
ii. Other Interests. 

 

6. Work Programme (Pages 9 - 10) 

 Any additional items to be added to the Work Programme:- 
i. Chairman’s items; 
ii. Members’ items; 

 

7. Questions to Portfolio Holders, if any  

8. 2nd Quarter Financial, Procurement & Performance Review 2021/22 (Pages 11 - 

52) 

9. Annual Report 2020/2021  

10. Annual Health & Safety Report 2020/2021 (Pages 53 - 78) 

11. Use of Enforcement Agents (Pages 79 - 84) 

12. Welcome Back Fund Update (Pages 85 - 90) 

13. Scrutiny Review - Discussion Item (Pages 91 - 114) 

14. Exclusion of the Press and Public  

You can view the agenda 
online by using a smart 
phone camera and 

scanning the code below: 

 

Public Document Pack



 The Chair to move:- 
 
“That, pursuant to Section 100A(2) and (4) of the Local Government Act, 1972, the 

public be excluded from the meeting in view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or the nature of the proceedings whereby it is likely that confidential 

information as defined in Section 100A (3) of the Act would be disclosed to the 
public in breach of the obligation of confidence or exempt information as defined in 
Section 10 I (1) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act would be disclosed to the 

public by virtue of the Paragraphs indicated.” 
 

15. Ascent Housing Update (Pages 115 - 122) 

 (Paragraph 3 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 

particular person (including the authority holding that information) ) 
 

16. 2nd Quarter 2021/22 Finance, Procurement & Performance Review - Appendix D 
(Pages 123 - 128) 

 (Paragraph 2 - Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an 
individual. ) 
 

 
MARK TRILLO 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND MONITORING OFFICER 
 

Membership of Resources Overview & Scrutiny Panel 

Councillor G Heath (Chair) Councillor T Riley (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor C J S Atkins Councillor J Davies 

Councillor S Ellis Councillor E Fallows 
Councillor M Gledhill Councillor N Hawkins 
Councillor T Holmes Councillor B A Hughes 

Councillor A Hulme Councillor K J Jackson 
Councillor J T Jones Councillor L D Lea 

Councillor L A Malyon Councillor P Routledge 
Councillor D Shaw Councillor P Wilkinson 
Councillor N Yates  

 



1 
 

 

STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

RESOURCES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL 
MEETING 

 

Minutes 
 

WEDNESDAY, 22 SEPTEMBER 2021 
 

PRESENT: Councillor G Heath (Chair)   
 

 Councillors C J S Atkins, M Gledhill, T Hall, A Hart, N Hawkins, 
T Holmes, B A Hughes, K J Jackson, L A Malyon, S E Ralphs MBE, 

T Riley, P Roberts, P Routledge, P Wilkinson and N Yates 
  

 

IN ATTENDANCE: S Hampton Member & Community Services Officer 
 P Trafford Member & Community Services Officer 

 T Cooper Head of Organisational Development and 
Transformation 

 K Pointon Head of Finance 

 J Betts 
 

L Vernon 

Interim Executive Director Finance and 
Revenues & Benefits 

Head of Democratic Services 
 
APOLOGIES: Councillors J Davies, S Ellis & D Shaw 

 
10 NOTIFICATION OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS, IF ANY 

 

Councillor Roberts attended as substitute for Councillor Ellis. 
 

11 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 
 

Councillor Hawkins noted that she had not submitted her apologies. She was unable 
to attend the meeting due to an urgent personal matter. 
 
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting of the Resources Overview & 
Scrutiny Panel held on 28 July 2021 be APPROVED as a correct record and signed 

by the Chair. 
 

12 URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS, IF ANY (24 HOURS NOTICE TO BE 

PROVIDED TO THE CHAIRMAN) 
 

There were no urgent items. 
 

13 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS: 

 

Councillor Wilkinson declared that he had received a Covid Business Support Grant. 

 
14 QUESTIONS TO PORTFOLIO HOLDERS, IF ANY 

 

There were no questions. 
 Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Resources Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 22 September 2021 
 

2 
 

15 1ST QUARTER FINANCIAL, PROCUREMENT & PERFORMANCE REVIEW 
2021/22 

 

The report informed members of the Council’s overall performance, procurement 
and financial position for the period ending 30 June 2021 (First Quarter 2021/22). 

 
The position was summarised as follows:- 

Subject Headline Reference 

Finance The Finance headlines for the First Quarter 

were: 

Performance against Budget 
 At the First Quarter stage  the General Fund 

projected outturn for 2021/22 was an 
underspend of £1,434,010. 

Efficiency Programme 
 At Quarter One £568,000 in savings had been 

taken against the 2021/22 general fund 
efficiency target of £830,430. It was anticipated 
that there would be a £177,000 shortfall in the 
year. 

Capital Programme 
 The revised Capital Programme budget for 

2021/22 was £4.83 million including the carry 
forward of capital underspends from 2020/21. 
The projected outturn for the year at Quarter 
One was £4.83 million; to budget. 

Treasury Management 
 Cash investments held at 30 June 2021 

totalled £19 million. The Ascent loan and 
debenture currently stood at £19 million; 

 Council borrowing at 30 June 2021 totalled 
£13 million (relating to the Ascent loan); 

 The Council’s net interest income receipts for 
the year was forecast to be to budget at the 
Quarter One stage. 

Revenue Collection 
 29.34% of Council Tax was collected by 30 

June 2021 compared to 28.76% for the same 
period last year (29.38% in 2019/20); 

 32.33% of Business Rates was collected by 30 
June 2021 compared to 22.30% for the same 
period last year (28.62% in 2019/20); 

 At the end of the First Quarter debt that was 
over 60 days old was £65,050 which compared 
with £97,390 at 30 June 2020. 

Appendix 

A 

Procurement The Procurement headlines for the First 
Quarter were: 

 10 procurement activities were completed; 

 The Procurement forward plan included 40 
procurement activities for completion in 
2021/22 (either SMDC only or joint); 

 At 30 June 2021, 43% of procurement activity 
undertaken was on the forward plan and the 
Council paid 95% of its invoices within 30 days 
during the year. 

Appendix 
B 

Performance The Performance headlines for the First Appendix Page 4



Resources Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 22 September 2021 
 

3 
 

Quarter were: 

 66% of the key performance indicators on 
track (40% were better than the previous year); 

 The Council received 14 complaints, 40 
comments and 14 compliments; 

 Priority actions – 15 green, 1 completed, 1 red 
rated, remainder yet to commence. 

C 

 
The Leader confirmed that the position was tight but manageable, with 1 significant 
underspend and 3 significant overspends: 

 
Underspend – Leisure Services (£142,550)  

 
Overspend – Property (£76,000), Revenues (£132,350) and Corporate Finance 
(£129,330). 

 
Member queries were as follows (responses in brackets): 

 

 The report referred to changes to Ascent. Was there any further information 

available? (Work was ongoing relating to changes in circumstances within 
Your Housing Group and it was appropriate to look forward. Covid had 
impacted upon the situation. The Panel would be updated on the situation at 

the appropriate time); 

 The Chair corrected an item under ‘Influencing Actions’ relating to the Rural 

Mobility Fund. The new bus service was to commence on 2 October 2021, not 
2 September as quoted. Staffs County Council had done well to correct an 
initial problem with the new Manchester bus service; 

 Could an update be given on the Biddulph Wharf Road Masterplan? (A report 
was to be presented at a subsequent Resources Panel). 

 
RESOLVED – That the First Quarter 2021/22 financial, procurement and 

performance position as detailed in Appendices A, B and C and summarised in the 
report be NOTED. 

 

16 MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN UPDATE 
 

The report updated members on the Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) in 

preparation for considering the budget (and associated Council Tax level) in 
February 2022. 

 
The purpose of the refresh of the MTFP was threefold:- 

1. To update the MTFP produced in February 2021 for known or likely changes; 

2. To highlight service and policy issues likely to impact on budget 
considerations later in the year; 

3. To provide contextual information so that other issues that may impact on 
short and longer term budgetary issues are identified and discussed. 

 

The overall conclusion was that the MTFP remained fundamentally robust and the 
following actions were needed prior to it being agreed alongside the 2022/23 budget 

in February 2022:- 
1. Forecasts to be rolled forward to include 2025/26; 
2. Inflation provision reviewed alongside economic data to establish whether 

structural inflation is higher than previously forecast; 
3. Any service budget demands to be built in; Page 5



Resources Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 22 September 2021 
 

4 
 

4. The outcomes of any Government reviews (on Council Tax, Business Rates 
and New Homes Bonus) are considered; 

5. Any changes to the Capital Programme (including any identified capital / 
revenue implications of major projects) are reflected; 

6. Decisions on any outstanding savings proposal and Fees and Charges are 

also reflected. 
 

Members expressed concern about recent news of substantial increases to energy 
costs. The Leader confirmed that any such increases would be dealt with as and 
when they occurred. 

 
RESOLVED – That the Panel NOTED the proposed updates to the MTFP set in 

February 2022, including further proposed actions.   
 

17 LOCAL COUNCIL TAX REDUCTION SCHEME REVIEW AND FOCUS ON 

UNIVERSAL CREDIT IMPLICATIONS 
 

The Council was obliged to annually consider whether to revise its Council Tax 
Reduction Scheme (CTRS), leave it as was or replace it with a completely new 
scheme. The report proposed to retain the existing scheme for 2022/23. However, 

the introduction of Universal Credit (UC) meant that the current scheme was proving 
increasingly difficult to administer and more difficult for recipients of the discount to 

understand and manage. The proposal was to explore options to provide greater 
certainty in the light of UC. Any decisions on design and subsequent implementation 
would occur by 2023/24 at the earliest, to allow for extensive consultation. 

 
Members expressed concern regarding an imminent reduction in UC which, when 

viewed alongside the upcoming increase in energy costs, was likely to place a 
number of residents in dire financial straits. 
 

John Betts – Interim Executive Director of Finance, Revenues & Benefits – 
confirmed that extreme caution was needed when designing the proposed bandings. 

A number of scenarios would be ‘modelled’ before any specific proposals were 
brought before the Panel. 
 
RESOLVED – That the Panel recommend that Cabinet:- 

 APPROVE the proposal to retain the existing CTRS for 2022/23; 

 APPROVE the proposal for further research to be undertaken into alternative 

designs for a CTRS that better deals with the impact of UC, subject to a 
further report and consultation. 

  
 

18 OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21 
 

Linden Vernon – Head of Democratic Services – presented the report to members, 

giving a summary of the work undertaken by the Council’s Overview & Scrutiny 
Panels during 2020/21. 

 
Member discussion centred mainly on the ‘virtual’ nature of meetings held since the 
Covid pandemic started and the fact that the default position for meetings other than 

those where decisions were made was still ‘virtual’. Points made were as follows:- 
 

 Virtual increases attendance but decreases participation; Page 6



Resources Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 22 September 2021 
 

5 
 

 Members of the public had expressed objections regarding the lack of 
accessibility of members and officers; 

 The continuance of virtual meetings cast a shadow on the Council’s 
reputation in terms of open and transparent dealings; 

 The Scrutiny Workshop to be held on 29 September 2021 was to be virtual; 

 Face-to-face meetings were preferable but should be the individual’s choice; 

 Staff members should not be compelled to attend the offices; 

 Hybrid was the ideal arrangement, though current legislation prevented hybrid 
attendees from voting; 

 
A Group Leaders’ Meeting was due to take place on Friday 24 September 2021 

where the matter of virtual meetings would be discussed. 
 
A request was made for reports and presentations to be available to members in 

advance of meetings whenever possible. 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be NOTED. 

 
 

19 WORK PROGRAMME 
 

Members requested that the following items be added to the Work Programme:- 
 

 The use of external collection agencies; 

 ‘Welcome back fund’. 
 

A request was made for items in the ‘To be confirmed’ category to be progressed. It 
was perceived that some items were left to drift. 

 
RESOLVED – That the 2021/22 Work Programme be AGREED, subject to the 

addition of the above for a future meeting. 

 
20 EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 

 
RESOLVED: 

 

That, pursuant to Section 100A(2) and (4) of the Local Government Act, 1972, the 
public be excluded from the meeting in view of the nature of the business to be 

transacted or the nature of the proceedings whereby it is likely that confidential 
information as defined in Section 100A (3) of the Act would be disclosed to the public 
in breach of the obligation of confidence or exempt information as defined in Section 

100 I (1)  of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act would be disclosed to the public by 
virtue of the Paragraphs indicated. 

 
21 EXEMPT MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 

 

The exempt minutes of the meeting held on 28 July 2021 were APPROVED. 

 

 
The meeting closed at 11.40 am 

 

 
 Page 7



Resources Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 22 September 2021 
 

6 
 

 
 

 
 
_________________________________Chairman ____________________Date 

Page 8



 
 

 

Resources Overview and Scrutiny Panel  
Work Programme 2021/22 

Date Item Contact Officer 
28 July 2021   
 4th Quarter 2020/21 Financial, Procurement & Performance Review J Betts 

22 Sept 2021   
 Local Tax Reduction Scheme Review & Focus on UC implications J Betts 

1st Quarter 2021/22 Financial, Procurement & Performance Review  J Betts 

Medium Term Financial Plan Update K Pointon 

Annual Scrutiny Review S Hampton 

17 Nov 2021   

 Annual Health & Safety Report D Owen 

2nd Quarter 2021/22 Financial, Procurement & Performance Review J Betts 

Annual Report V Higgins 

Ascent Housing Report J Betts 

Use of Enforcement Agents J Betts 

Welcome Back Fund Update J Betts 

Scrutiny Review A Stokes 

2 Feb 2022   

 3rd Quarter 2021/22 Financial, Procurement & Performance Review J Betts 

TBC   

 Empty Property Strategy (including initiatives and grants for these to come 
back into operation 

A Stokes 

 Procurement Strategy J Betts 

 Staff Pay Grade Review A Stokes 

 Review of Equality in Delivery of Services L Vernon 

 Organisational Development Strategy T Cooper 

 Joint Venture Partnership to Deliver Facilities Management Services N Rodgers 

 Ongoing costs of the Community Orchards Scheme D Smith 

 Installation of LED lighting within Moorlands House K Webster 

 Dementia – Staff Training & Equipment Required  

P
age 9

A
genda Item

 6



T
his page is intentionally left blank



  

STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

 
Resources Overview & Scrutiny Panel 

 
17th November 2021 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

Appendices Attached 

 Appendix A (2021/22 – Second Quarter (Financial Report) 

 Appendix B (2021/22 – Second Quarter (Procurement Report)  

 Appendix C (2021/22 – Second Quarter (Performance Report) 

 Appendix D (2021/22 – Second Quarter (Write-offs) CONFIDENTIAL 

 

 
1. Reason for the Report  

 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to inform members of the Council’s overall 

performance and financial position for the period ended 30th September (“Second 
Quarter 2021/22”); and 

 
2. Recommendations 

2.1 It is recommended that the Committee:  
 

 Note the Second Quarter 2021/22 financial, procurement and performance 
position detailed in Appendices A, B and C and summarised at 3.3 of this 

covering report. 

 Recommend for approval the write offs set out in Appendix D  
 

 
3. Executive Summary 

 
3.1 This report essentially summarises the Council’s financial, procurement and 

performance position after considering service activity up to the end of the Second 

Quarter (i.e. 30th September 2021).  
 

TITLE: Second Quarter Financial, Procurement and 
Performance Review 2021/22 

 
PORTFOLIO HOLDER Cllr Sybil Ralphs – Council Leader SMDC 

  
CONTACT OFFICERS: Keith Pointon – Head of Finance 

Vanessa Higgins – Information Business 

Partner  
   

WARDS INVOLVED:  Non-Specific 

Page 11

Agenda Item 8



  

3.2 Detailed analysis is provided in Appendix A (Finance), Appendix B (Procurement) 
and Appendix C (Performance).  

 
3.3 The position can be summarised as follows: 
 

Subject Headline Reference 

Finance The Finance headlines for the Second Quarter are: 

Performance against Budget 

 At the Second Quarter stage the General Fund projected outturn for 
2021/22 is an underspend of £1,719,820 including £1.5m in 
Section31 grants, which will need to be placed into reserves at year-
end for distribution via the Collection Fund in future years. 

Efficiency Programme 

 At Quarter Two £633,000 in savings have been taken against the 
2021/22 general fund efficiency target of £830,430. It is anticipated 
that there will be a £167,000 shortfall in the year. 

Capital Programme 

 The revised Capital Programme budget for 2021/22 is £4.83 million 
including the carry forward of capital underspends from 2020/21.  
The projected outturn for the year at Quarter Two is £4.71million; an 
underspend of £0.12million. 

Treasury Management 

 Cash investments held at 30 September 2021 totalled £21.7 million. 
The Ascent loan and debenture currently stands at £19 million. 

 Council borrowing at 30 September 2021 totals £12 million (relating 
to the Ascent loan) 

 The Council’s net interest income receipts for the year is forecast to  
exceed the  budget by £4,000 at the Quarter Two stage. 

Revenue Collection 

 55.88% of Council Tax was collected by 30 September 2021 
compared to 55.60% for the same period last year (56.34% in 
2019/20) 

 44.95% of Business Rates was collected by 30 September 2021 
compared to 50.32% for the same period last year (55.57% in 
2019/20) 

 At the end of the Second Quarter debt that was over 60 days old 
was £53,157 which compares with £101,700 at 30 September 2020.  

 

Appendix A 

Page 12



  

Procurement The Procurement headlines for the Second Quarter are: 

 18 procurement activities were completed  

 The Procurement forward plan included 36 procurement activities for 
completion in 2021/22 (either SMDC only or joint) 

 At the 30 September 2021, 51% of procurement activity undertaken 
was on the forward plan. 
 

Appendix B  

Performance The Performance headlines for the Second Quarter are: 

 80% of the key performance indicators on track (34% are better than 
the previous year) 

 The Council received 36 complaints, 102 comments and 28 
compliments 

 Priority Actions - 15 green, 2 amber, 1 completed, 15 grey 
 

Appendix C 

 

 

 
4.       How this Report Links to Corporate Priorities  

 

4.1 The successful delivery of all corporate priorities is dependent upon the effective 
management of performance and financial resources, which is the subject of this 

report. 
 
5.       Options and Analysis 
 

5.1 Detailed Analysis is contained within the main body of the Report. 

 
6. Implications 
 

6.1 Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998) 
None. 
 

6.2 Workforce 
None. 
 

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment 
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's Equality 
and Diversity policies. 

 
6.4 Financial Considerations 

There are substantial financial considerations contained throughout the 
report. 
 

6.5 Legal 
None. 

 
16.6 Climate Change 

None. 

 
6.7   External Consultation 

  None. 
 

Page 13



  

6.8           Risk A    Risk  Assessment 
There are a number of risks to the financial position presented, which are 

identified and explained in the financial report attached at Appendix A. 
 

 
 

JOHN BETTS 

Interim Executive Director Finance and Revenues & Benefits 

 
Web Links and 
Background Papers 

Location Contact details 

 

Report appendices A-C 

 

Moorlands House 

 

Keith Pointon 
01538 395400 Ext. 4193 
Vanessa Higgins  

01538 395400 Ext. 4195 

 
 

Page 14



1 
 

APPENDIX A 

 

 
 

2021/22 
 

Second Quarter  
 Financial  
Review 

 
  

 

 

 

 

 

Page 15



2 
 

1.      Background and Introduction 

 
1.1. In accordance with the Council’s Financial Procedure Rules and 

recommended good practice, a quarterly financial report is presented to 
members. This is the second report for 2021/22. 

 
1.2. The report summarises overall financial performance for 2021/22 with 

particular emphasis on the key sources of financial risk to the Council. 

Specific considerations are as follows: 
 

 General Fund Revenue Account (Section 2) – considers budgetary 

performance on the General Account by looking at variations in 
income and expenditure and the funding received by the Council.  

 

 Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme (Section 3) – considers 

progress in achieving the efficiency and rationalisation savings 
forecast for 2021/22.  

 

 Alliance Environmental Services (Section 4) – highlights the 

performance of the Council’s Joint Venture Company providing Waste 

and Fleet services. 
 

 Capital Programme (Section 5) – provides an update to Members on 

progress against the Council’s capital plan  
 

 Treasury Management (Section 6) – sets out the key statistics in 

terms of investments and borrowings; 
 

 Revenue Collection (Section 7) – considers progress-to-date in 

collecting the Council Tax, Business Rates and Sundry Debts. 
 

Page 16



3 
 

2. General Fund Revenue Account 
 

2.1. This section of the report considers the financial performance of the 

General Fund Revenue Account against budget by setting out variations 
in income and expenditure and funding received by the Council.  

 
 

 

Service (with staff*) 
2021/22 
Budget 

Expected 
Outturn 
2021/22 

Variance 

Contribution 
to / (Use of) 
Earmarked 
Reserves 

Net Variance 

  £ £ £ £ £ 

Alliance Leadership Team 51,780 32,900 (18,880) - (18,880) 

Audit 9,940 6,880 (3,060) - (3,060) 

ICT 702,760 728,740 25,980 - 25,980 

Human Resources 52,360 57,860 5,500 - 5,500 

Member Services 360,310 328,300 (32,010) - (32,010) 

Property Services 640,970 723,970 83,000 - 83,000 

Benefits (234,150) (209,390) 24,760 - 24,760 

Planning Applications (357,460) (408,680) (51,220) - (51,220) 

Building Control 54,510 54,510 - - - 

Customer Services 132,280 87,130 (45,150) - (45,150) 

Legal Services 64,520 60,520 (4,000) - (4,000) 

Electoral Services 97,790 57,790 (40,000) 40,000 - 

Licensing and Land Charges (210,970) (222,970) (12,000) - (12,000) 

Regeneration 59,020 138,780 79,760 (60,000) 19,760 

Communities and Cultural 128,830 119,320 (9,510) - (9,510) 

Housing Strategy 15,650 29,070 13,420 (13,380) 40 

Transformation 6,760 3,970 (2,790) - (2,790) 

Community Safety and Enforcement 151,050 143,550 (7,500) - (7,500) 

Finance & Procurement 143,910 135,510 (8,400) - (8,400) 

Revenues (303,120) (227,650) 75,470 - 75,470 

Corporate Finance* 5,905,840 6,028,670 122,830 - 122,830 

Waste Collection 1,936,010 1,670,740 (265,270) - (265,270) 

Street Scene 386,930 401,050 14,120 - 14,120 

Leisure Services 455,970 320,620 (135,350) (95,490) (230,840) 

Horticulture 539,400 578,150 38,750 (5,200) 33,550 

Environmental Health (24,660) (8,700) 15,960 - 15,960 

            

Net Total of Services 10,766,230 10,630,640 (135,590)  (269,660) 

           

Net Interest (319,010) (353,010) (34,000)  (34,000) 

  10,447,220 10,277,630 (169,590) (134,070) (303,660) 

Funding       

- external (6,179,940) (7,730,170) (1,550,230) - (1,550,230) 

- reserves contribution to/(from) 
 

    

     general contingency (4,253,120) (4,253,120) -  - 

     use of carry forward from 20/21 (14,160) (14,160) -  - 

     earmarked - - - 134,070 134,070 

        
Projected (Surplus)/Deficit - (1,719,820) (1,719,820) - (1,719,820) 

           

* Staff budgets are currently budgeted w ithin Corporate Finance. 

 

Page 17



4 
 

2.2. A revenue budget of £10,433,060 was set for 2021/22. In accordance with 
Financial Procedure Rules, the roll forward of £14,160 in unused budgets from 
2020/21 has been authorised. 

 
Planning (£5,500): in respect of the development of the Local Plan in 2021/22 

Member Services (£8,660): in respect of Member Initiative funds to 

applied in 2021/22. 
 

 This brings the 2021/22 budget to £10,447,220 
 

2.3.  The table above shows how this budget has been allocated to services. 
 

2.4. The Q2 projected outturn on the General Fund Revenue Account for the year 

is £8,727,400. This represents a projected surplus for the year of £1,719,820.   
 

2.5. There are three areas of significant underspend (>£50,000): 
 

 Planning Applications (£51,220 underspend);  Savings of some £20,000 

are accruing against policy and regulatory budget heads.  Application fee 
income is projected to exceed expectations by £30,000. 

 
 Waste Collection (£265,270 underspend); The service has received a 

£280,000 net credit rebate of recycling income arising out of an increase in 
value of the recyclate collected. This more than offsets other budgetary 
pressures such as increased disposal costs. 

 
 Leisure Services (£230,840 underspend); There is scope to make 

operational savings of some £135,000 against the Covid-19 support 
budget put in place to fund the cost-plus arrangement with the leisure 
contractor.  The service will also benefit from the application of some 

£95,840 of earmarked reserves arising out of Government support 
earmarked at the end of 2020/21. 

 

 
2.6. There are three areas of significant overspend (>£50,000): 

 
 

 Property (£83,000 overspend); Covid-19 has impacted this service 

significantly.  Firstly car parking, where a £63,000 reduction in income is 
forecast. Secondly, the on-going cost pressures deriving from the facilities 
management arrangements are currently forecast to result in a £20,000 

overspend, mainly in respect of additional building and public convenience 
cleaning costs.   
 

 Revenues (£75,470 overspend); The impact of Covid-19 on the 

Recovery service was initially predicted to be significant. However the 

income generated from summons activity is now running only £5,000 
below original expectations. Further budget pressure in the region of 
£70,000 is predicted in local taxation from the level of spending on 

external services to support billing processes and address backlogs 
arising out of Covid.   

 

Page 18



5 
 

 Corporate Finance (£122,830 overspend);  At this stage of the year the 

impact of Covid-19 on the Authority’s ability to achieve its efficiency targets 

is predicted to result in a £167,000 shortfall in budgeted savings offset in 
part by predicted net savings of £77,000 in the establishment. Further 
pressure across a number of Corporate budget heads could add a further 

£23,000 to this overspend. 
 

    

2.7. Net interest costs, as detailed in section 6, are currently expected to 
generate £34,000 more income than budgeted. 

 

2.8. The level of funding anticipated for the year is £1,684,300 above that budgeted 
due to the following: 

 

 External Funding: (£1,550,230) 
 

 Business Rates Retention (£1,550,230 additional funding): 
o The Council expects to receive £1,803,780 in additional S31 grants 

in the year due to continuation of Extended Retail and Nursery 

Discounts to respond to the covid-19 situation – at the time of 
budget setting central government had not confirmed these reliefs. 
Accounting practice dictates that these grants are treated as general 

fund revenue in the year. However, the extended reliefs impact the 
Collection Fund by increasing the deficit in the year, which will need 

to be distributed in future years, therefore this additional funding 
needs to be earmarked to accommodate this and cannot be used to 
support other services. 

 
o An increase of £197,240 in the net levy payable on growth to the 

Staffordshire Business Rates Pool is currently forecast compared to 
the budgeted amount. This is due to fluctuations in the level of 
growth affected by the provision for appeals. 

Part of the levy payment savings achieved as member of the pool 
are dependent on the performance of the whole pool so could only 

be estimated at year end. The pool has now advised the draft final 
amount due for the previous year (subject to completion of external 
audits), this is £56,310 greater than the accrued amount, which will 

offset the surplus Business Rates Retention in the current year. 
 

Use of Reserves: (£134,070) 
 

 Earmarked Reserves (£134,070 additional usage): 
o Earmarked reserves are created to match available funding with 

future projects and activities.  Often it is not possible to anticipate 
when eligible spend will occur and so as the year progresses 
services will identify projects and schemes where earmarked 

reserves can be applied. To date across the authority usage 
amounts to £134,070 more than nominally anticipated at the 
beginning of the year. 

 
 

3. Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme 

 

Page 19



6 
 

3.1. This section of the report considers the financial performance of the 
Council’s Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme in 2021/22. 
 

3.2. The Council’s Medium-Term Financial Plan (approved in February 2019) 
included the four-year (2017/18 – 2020/21) Efficiency and Rationalisation 

Strategy targeting savings of £3.14 million.  This was required to balance the 
forecast budget deficit position of £2.7m and also the carry forward of 
unachieved efficiencies from 2016/17 of £0.4m. 
 

3.3. The Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy is premised on the need to both 

reduce expenditure and increase income. The need to grow income is now 
more of a priority as the Council moves more towards being self-financing. 
The strategy has been developed with the underlying principles of protecting 

frontline service delivery. It is also intended that the strategy is a tool to 
enable the Council to ensure that its service spending is determined by the 

established priorities set out in the Corporate Plan. 
 

3.4. The 2021/22 budget was set in February 2021 with the assumption of 

£448,000 of savings in the year. Unachieved efficiencies of £382,400 were 
brought forward from 2020/21 in line with the MTFP, making an in-year target 

for 2021/22 of £830,430. A large part of this savings requirement is focussed 
on the removal of surplus budgets no longer needed. 
 

3.5. The major focus of the savings programme in 2021/22 being on growth, 
income generation and major procurements. 

 
3.6. At the end of Quarter Two, £633,060 in savings have been taken against the 

2021/22 efficiency target. These relate to the removal of surplus leasing 

budgets (£419,660); removal of underspent budgets within the 
Environmental services (£53,220) and insurance services (£15,000); and 

savings in the AES contract (£145,180)  
 

3.7. There is a significant risk that not all of the current year savings will be 

achieved in the year, particularly those relating to growing fees and charges 
and income generation. At this stage it is assumed that £167,000 in savings 

will remain unachieved at year-end. This will continue to be monitored over 
the rest of the year and further savings opportunities explored to make up the 
shortfall. 
 

3.8. The longer term need for a new Efficiency Programme will be considered as 

part of the revision of the 2022/23 Medium Term Financial Plan. 
 

3.9. The Authority carries a longstanding reserve earmarked to support the 

Efficiency Strategy, which can be drawn on to offset one-off costs of 
delivering the efficiency programme, such as redundancy costs. The reserve 

currently stands at £493,000. It has not been necessary to draw on this 
reserve in previous years so it remains intact to underwrite performance 
against future savings targets in the Efficiency Programme. 

 
4. Alliance Environmental Services 

Page 20



7 
 

 
4.1. Alliance Environmental Services Ltd (AES) delivers waste, fleet, street 

cleansing and grounds maintenance services to both Staffordshire Moorlands 

District and High Peak Borough Councils. The Councils are shareholders of 
the company along with Ansa, which is a wholly owned subsidiary of Cheshire 

East Council. 
 

4.2. AES’s financial performance and impact on this Council’s budget is 

summarised below: 
 
 

2021-22 £ 

    AES Contract budget 4,565,970 

    
Management fee 4,683,331 

Net additional claim/rebate (296,713) 

Allocation of AES efficiency (21,721) 

Covid-19 costs 9,660 

Total management fee payable 4,374,557 

Allocation of Joint Operation profit (57,314) 

Net total 4,317,243 

    
Variance to budget (248,727) 

 
4.3. The AES business plan for all services being delivered to the Council during 

2021/22 includes a budgeted management fee of £4,683,331. The Council’s 
£21,721 share of the total AES forecast efficiency target for 2021/22 is 
repayable to the Council at the end of the year and is allocated against the 

management fee costs. 
 

4.4. An additional pressure on the Pay Award compared to the budgeted amount is 
forecast to be offset by an anticipated rebate on recycling contracts income 
following an improvement on the basket of goods rates. Whilst markets 

continue to fluctuate this is subject to change, but is currently forecast at a net 
benefit of £296,713. 

 

4.5. Some additional costs relating to Covid-19, such as additional cleaning 
products, PPE and additional agency costs are forecast at £9,660. 

 
4.6. Under accounting standards, AES’s financial performance is incorporated in to 

the Councils’ single entity statements as a ‘Joint Operation’ as opposed to 
separate group accounts being reported.  The profit is therefore apportioned 
between the two Councils and the respective services in line with the input of 

original budgeted resources from each department. The Council’s share of the 
forecast profit based on the forecast outturn is £57,314 and is offset against 

the management fee costs. 
 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 21



8 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

5.       Capital Programme  
 

5.1. This section of the report provides an update to members on the Council’s 

Capital Programme. 
 

5.2. The table below shows a high level (service) summary of the General Fund 
Capital Programme position at 30th September  2021. Further detail – on a 
scheme by scheme basis – is contained in Annex A: 

 

  
2021/22   

Approved 
Budget  

Q2 
Changes  

2021/22 
Revised  
Budget 

Expected 
Outturn 
2021/22 

Expected 
Variance 
2021/22 

  £ £ £ £ £ 

Housing Standards 1,523,200   1,523,200 1,523,200               -    

Property Services 711,010   711,010 596,920    (114,090)  

ICT 143,560   143,560 135,060       (8,500)  

Leisure Services 150,000   150,000 150,000               -    
Fleet Management  1,712,530   1,712,530 1,712,530               -    
CCTV 85,650   85,650 85,650               -    
Community  200,000   200,000 200,000               -    
Regeneration 53,520   53,520 53,520               -    

Horticulture 251,720   251,720 251,720               -    

Total 4,831,190  0 4,831,190 4,708,600    (122,590)  

Funding:-           

External  Contributions 1,519,940   1,519,940     1,519,940                -    

Capital Receipts 25,000   25,000          25,000                -    
Earmarked Reserves         88,500    88,500          88,500                -    

Borrowing 3,197,750   3,197,750 3,075,160    (122,590)  

Total 4,831,190 0  4,831,190     4,708,600     (122,590)  
 

5.3. The 2021/22 General Fund Capital Budget as updated and approved by 
Members on 5th October 2021 was set at  £4,831,190, no changes have been 

made during quarter two. 

 

5.4  There is one  significant capital expenditure  variance to note :- 
 

 Property (£114,090 underspend) projects have been re-profiled 

following the on-going review and prioritisation of works contained 

within the Asset Management Plan.  
 

Page 22



9 
 

5.5 Overall capital funding which is anticipated to be  applied to the 2021/22 
Capital Programme is lower than forecast, reflecting the revised timing of 
capital spend, hence a reduced borrowing requirement of £122,590 against 

the revised budget. 
 

 
 
 

 
 
6. Treasury Management 

 
6.1. This section of the report sets out the key treasury management statistics in 

relation to the Council’s investments and borrowings. This report comprises a 
high level treasury management summary.  The Audit and Accounts 

Committee receives detailed operational updates on treasury management. 
 

Investments 
 

6.2. Cash Investments held on the 30th September 2021 totalled £21.7million. 
Interest earned on these investments up to the end of the second quarter 

totalled £20,710 and the average level of funds available for investment was 
£19.2million. 

 

6.3. The Council budgeted to receive £20,710 in investment income in 2021/22. As 
interest rates are currently as expected at the time of budget setting; a small 

surplus of £4,000 is anticipated against the budget. 
 

     Ascent Joint Venture 
 

6.4. The Council has a debenture of £5million paying 2% and loan of £14million 

paying an average 3.02% with Ascent, the joint venture company established 
to deliver affordable housing across the District. 

 
6.5. A report was submitted to Cabinet on 18th June 2019 (exempt by the virtue of 

paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972) 

reviewing the Ascent Business Plan and Delivery Model. Following this report 
the current expectation is that the original Loan and Debenture will be 

returned to the Council from Ascent and a new Loan arrangement direct to 
Your Housing is proposed. 
 

6.6. The investment income budget was based on the original investments 
continuing: £100,000 income from the debenture and £422,880 from the loan. 

The current interest income forecast does not assume any variance to this 
until more is confirmed about the timing of any potential repayments and 
reinvestments. 

 

     Borrowing 

 
6.7. Total debt outstanding as at 30th September 2021 totalled £12million; this 

funds the Ascent loan. The Council budgeted to incur £224,580 in interest 

charges in 2021/22. This was based on externally funding the full existing 

Page 23



10 
 

Ascent loan balance of £14million and a £1million general fund borrowing 
requirement. £2million of the Ascent loan is internally funded at the end of 
quarter 2 and there has been no ‘new’ borrowing undertaken for the general 

fund.  
 

6.8. Refinancing and new borrowing will be kept under review during the year as 
the capital programme is carried out, and if any changes to the Ascent loan 
relationship occur, alongside views about cash flow and opportunities to take 

borrowing at cheap levels vs internal borrowing in the low interest income 
environment. Currently an underspend of £30,000 is forecast against the 

budget. 
 
7. Revenue Collection 

 
7.1. This section of the report details progress to date in collecting the Council Tax, 

Business Rates and Sundry Debt. 
 

7.2. The Quarter 2 collection rate was as follows: 
 

 Council Tax – 55.88% of Council Tax was collected by 30th September 

2021, compared to 55.60% for the same period in 2020/21, and 56.34% in 
2019/20. 

 Business Rates – 44.95% of Business Rates was collected by 30th 

September 2021, compared to 50.32% for the same period in 2020/21, 
and 55.57% in 2019/20. 

o The longer term effects of Covid-19 on collection rates continue 
to be monitored. Timings of payments have also been affected 
by the change to the amount of Extended Retail discount by 

central government. 

 
7.3 At the end of Quarter Two the value of sundry debt that was over 60 days old 

was £53,157 which compares with £101,700 at 30th September 2020.   
 
 
 

 
  

Page 24



11 
 

ANNEX A 
 

Capital Programme Update 30th September 2021 

 
 

Capital Schemes 
2021/22 

Approved 
Budget  

Q2 
Changes  

2021/22 
Revised  
Budget 

2021/22 
Revised  
Budget 

Expected 
Variance 
2021/22 

  £ £ £ £ £ 

Housing Standards           

Private Sector Grants 1,523,200   1,523,200  1,523,200                -    

Total Environmental Health  1,523,200                -     1,523,200   1,523,200                -    

Property Services           

Asset Management Plan  711,010   711,010     596,920  

   

(114,090)  

 Total Property 711,010               -        711,010      596,920   (114,090)  

ICT 143,560   143,560     135,060       (8,500)  

 Total ICT     143,560                -        143,560      135,060       (8,500)  

 
          

Vehicle & Plant Purchase 1,712,530   1,712,530  1,712,530                -    

Fleet Mangement   1,712,530                -     1,712,530   1,712,530                -    

CCTV - Upgrade  85,650   85,650       85,650                -    

CCTV       85,650                -          85,650        85,650                -    

Regeneration           

Moorlands Partnership Grants  53,520   53,520       53,520                -    

Total Regeneration       53,520                -          53,520        53,520                -    

Community           

Forsbrook Community Facilities  200,000               -    200,000 200,000               -    

Total Community      200,000                -        200,000      200,000                -    

Horticulture           

Brough Park Improvements 251,720   251,720     251,720                -    

Total Horticulture     251,720                -        251,720      251,720                -    

Leisure           

Sports Clubs Facilities  150,000               -    150,000 150,000               -    

Total Horticulture     150,000                -        150,000      150,000                -    

            

Total Programme 4,831,190               -    4,831,190 4,708,600  (122,590)  

 

 
 

 

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



 

APPENDIX B 

 

 
 

2021/22 
 

Second Quarter 
 Procurement  

Review 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1. Introduction 

 

Page 27



 

1.1 A key element of the financial savings included in the Council’s Efficiency & 
Rationalisation Strategy is being met from Procurement activity which was agreed 

by Full Council in February 2017. 
 

1.2 The current Procurement Strategy was developed to ensure that its objectives 
linked closely with the Council’s overall strategic vision and aims and objectives.  
The key actions included, delivery of cashable savings, development of a 

professional Procurement unit, updated Procurement Rules to support 
transparency and the implementation of electronic tendering processes and 

procurement systems. 
 
1.3 The revised Procurement Strategy is scheduled for presentation and 

implementation following consultation with Members during 2021/22.   The revised 
strategy will focus on the following key objectives to support the aims of the 

Council’s Corporate plan and align with the LGA National Procurement Strategy: 
 

 Delivering Value for Money 

 Commercial focus and effective Contract Management 

 Maintaining Transparency and Ethical practices through effective leadership 

 Promoting Responsible and Sustainable Procurement  

 Supporting the Local Economy and Business Growth 

 Delivering Social Value (CSR) through our Contracts 

 

1.4  The strategy is timetabled for decision and implementation in March 2022, due to 
 further review on the key priorities and outputs to align with other relevant key 

 strategies currently being developed.  Further consultation is planned with local 
 business forums to actively engage local small to medium businesses to gain 
 feedback on our key priorities. 

 
 

2. Second Quarter Completed Procurements 

2.1 The activity supported by the procurement function during the second quarter July 

2021 to September 2021 is summarised below: 

Second Quarter   High Value 

(> £181,000) 

Low Value    

(< £181,000) 
Total 

SMDC Only [-] 13 13 

JOINT (SM/HP) [-] 5 5 

TOTAL   18 

 

2.2 Annex A provides details of the 18 procurements exercises reviewed and 
completed during Quarter two. 

 
 
3. 2021/22 Procurement Forward Plan 

 

3.1 The table below details the number of exercises which fall into either low or high 

value (profiled over full contract term) scheduled for completion or starting in 
2021/22. 

Page 28



 

2021/22 Activity High Value 

(> 181,000k) 

 Low Value  

(< £181,000k) 

Total 

SMDC 

 

1 21 22 

JOINT (SM/HP) 1 13 14 

TOTAL   36 
 

In addition to the above, there are 162 listed entries brought forward from previous 
years (for review and completion for both HPBC and SMDC combined).  

3.2 Some of the more significant ‘high level’ procurement activity that is scheduled for 
delivery in 2021/22 includes:- 

 Facilities Management  

 Cornhill West Industrial Units Project (Subject to Approval) 

 Consultancy levelling up fund 

 Professional Services Contract – Architectural 

 
4. Procurement Performance 

4.1 This section reports on the Council performance in terms of procurement activity 
and the payment of suppliers. 

 
4.2 Performance for the second quarter is highlighted below:- 

 

Performance Indicator Target 
Performance at 

30th Sept 2021 

% of Alliance Procurement 

Activity on Forward Plan 

 

68% 51% 

Annual contract spend as % 

of gross expenditure budget 

 

94% 92% 

Supplier (Creditor) spend 

within the local area as a % 

of total spend 

 

Baseline 
Result 20/21 

6.3% 

% of Contracts awarded to 

local suppliers following 

submission of EOI (over 

£5,000) 

 

Contextual 
Result 20/21  

33% 

  

   Performance Indicators – targets off track 

Page 29



 

4.3 We are continuing our communication programme of regular service review 
meetings to ensure planned activity is captured and monitored on the plan. We are 

continuing to work with service areas to ensure they are compliant in 
commissioning Supplies, Services or Works and that the internal processes are 

adhered to. 
 

 

 

ANNEX A 

Second Quarter Procurement Activity Completed - SMDC 

Contract Title Brief contract 
description 

Recurring 
or One Off  

Service Area  Procedure  Award Detail  Term  
(years) 

 Total 
Contra

ct 
Value £ 

Tape Street Car 

Park works 

Resurfacing works  One Off Assets Open 

Tender 

Bethell 

Construction 
Ltd 

6-8 wks 98,251 

Surfacing, 
Drainage, 
fencing at 

Section of 
Biddulph Valley 
Way 

Minor grounds works One Off Service 
Commissioning 

RFQ RGS Memorial 
Man 

2-3 wks 3,100 

Hales Hall 

Reservoir 

10 yr Engineer 

Inspection 

Recurring Service 
Commissioning 

RFQ Matt 

MacDonald  

n/a 5,850 

Replacement of 

fencing adjacent 
to Biddulph  

Supply and 

installation of fencing 

One Off Service 
Commissioning 

RFQ Darren P 

Reynolds 

n/a 2,200 

Biddulph 
Neighbourhood 
Plan and NDO -  

Appointment of 
Examiner 
 

Professional 
Services 

One Off Development 
Control  

Direct 
Award 

NPIERS  
Neighbourhoo
d Planning 

Independent 
examiner 
referral 

Service 

8-10 
wks 

12,000 

Viability 
Appraisal (Shire 
Hill) 

Professional 
Services 

One off Development 
control 

RFQ Keppie Massie 4-6 wks 10,050 

Climate Change 
Pathway 
Analysis and 

Action Planning 
 

Specialist 
Consultancy 
Services 

One Off Communities Single 
Source 

Anthesis 
Group 

4 
months 

28,975 

Page 30



 

Welcome Back 
Fund – Biddulph 
Town Council 

SLA – funding 
Agreement (UK Gov 
ERDF) 

One Off Regeneration Direct 
Award 
public to 

public  

Biddulph Town 
Council 

6 
months 

18,450 

Welcome Back 
Fund – Leek 

town Council 

SLA – Funding 
Agreement (UK Gov 

ERDF) 

One Off Regeneration Direct 
Award 

public to 
public 

Leek Town 
Council 

6 
months 

17,800 

Welcome Back 

Fund – Cheadle 
Town Council 

SLA – Funding 

Agreement (UK Gov 
ERDF) 

One Off Regeneration Direct 

Award 
public to 
public 

Cheadle Town 

Council 

6 

months 

15,840 

Property 
Demand 
Analysis – Leek 

Mills  

Consultancy  One Off Regeneration Open 
Tender 

Lambert Smith 
Hampton 

4 
months 

29,450 

Tree Scrub 
Clearance at 
Wetley Moor 

Horticultural works One Off Service 
Commissioning 

RFQ Hamps Valley n/a 3,800 

18m Boardwalk 
at Ladderedge 

Country Park 

Installation of 
boardwalk/handrail in 

Longsdon Wood part 
of site 

One Off Service 
Commissioning 

RFQ Faulkner 
Fencing 

n/a 3,000 

 

  

Page 31



 

Second Quarter Procurement Activity Completed – JOINT (HPBC & SMDC) 

Contract Title Brief contract description Recurring 
or One Off  

Service Area  Procedure  Award 
Detail 

Term / 
Duration 

 
 

 Total 
Contract 
Value £     

Climate Literacy 
Training 

Consultancy support One Off Communities Single 
Source 

Keele 
University 

n/a 3,450 

Agency – Food 
Hygiene 
Inspections 

Agency  One Off Environmental 
Health 

Single 
Source 

Osbourne 
Richardson 
Ltd 

9 
months 

17,000 

Developer 
Contributions 
Supplementary 
Planning 
Documents 
(SPDs) 
 

Consultancy Support One Off Development 
Control 

Open 
Tender 

Capita 9 
months 

46,908 

E-tendering 
portal for HPBC 
and SMDC 

Licence renewal – 4 yr 
agreement 

Recurring Service 
Commissioning 

Framework 
Direct 
Award 

Proactis 4 yrs 16,800 

Energy 
Consultancy – 
Public Buildings 

Specialist Consultancy 
services 

One Off Assets Framework 
Further 
comp 

Nottingham 
City Council 

4 
months 

42,652 

 

 

 

Page 32



 

 

 

Staffs Moorlands Performance & Customer Feedback Report: 2021/22 (Q2) 

  

P
age 33



 

 

P
age 34



80%

14%

6%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

On Track Off Track N/A

34% 40%

26%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Better Weaker No Change

Staffordshire Moorlands Q2 Summary  

The following report provides Councillors with an overview of performance at Staffs Moorlands for the period April to September 2021 in 

relation to the Council’s corporate plan priorities and the associated performance targets and projects. The report also provides an overview of 

the results from the Council’s customer feedback system in terms of how we handle and learn from complaints and the level of comments and 

compliments.        

Performance Overview  

There are 35 targeted measures against which the council reports on a monthly and quarterly basis, the remaining measures in the council’s 

performance framework are considered contextual in nature and feature in the Annual Report. The charts below show the results for both 

attainment and trend data in the first half of 2021/22; with 80% of targets on track at the end of September and 60% of measures maintaining 

or improving on their performance compared to last year. The actions being taken to address the ‘off track’ measures are detailed at the end 

of this report. 

The report also provides an update on the progress of key projects that contribute to the priority actions outlined in the 2019-2023 Corporate 

Plan. The table below right explains the colour coding used to describe the current status of these projects / actions.  

Customer Feedback Overview  

There has been an increase in the number of complaints received compared to last year, although it remains low at just 36 in six months. 

There have been no repeat complaints and performance in handling complaints in 20 days is on track to meet its 97% target. Further 

information about lessons learned is included in the report.    

 Off Track 

 In danger of going off Track 

 On Track 

 Not yet started / Decision 

awaited 

 Complete / Closed 

P
age 35



0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

On Track Off Track N/A

SM Aim 1: September Results 2021/22

0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

Better Weaker No Change

SM Aim 1: September Trends 2021/22 

Aim 1: Help create a safer and healthier environment for our communities to live and work   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The grey bar denotes data which has been unavailable again this quarter due to IT issues with the Civica system and relates to the two housing 

benefit processing measures for new claims and changes in circumstance. The provider has been tasked with resolving the issue of data 

extraction, which is not affecting benefit payments.  

Two homelessness measures remain off track pertaining to settled accommodation outcomes for homelessness applications, which are being 

hampered by slow turnover and reduced availability within the private rented sector. However, there are signs of improvement this month 

and also in the proportion of applications being opened at the ‘prevention’ rather than ‘relief’ stages.    

 

Celebrating Success:  

At the end of Q2, the following performance indicators are outstripping their targets: 

✓ temporary accommodation placements in excess of 6 weeks 

✓ initial homelessness applications opened at the prevention and relief duty stages 

 

 

P
age 36



2019-2023 Corporate Plan Priority Actions – Progress Highlights 

Priority Actions Status Commentary – September 
Develop a strategy for further 
development of affordable and specialist 
housing 

 A report on the Accelerated Housing Delivery Programme which includes affordable housing 
has been prepared and was scheduled for Cabinet and Service Delivery. However, the report 
has been delayed in regard to issues with Tape Street. A meeting will be arranged to discuss 
this in detail. 

Complete the review of the CCTV system 
and implement the agreed 
recommendations 

 We are arranging a meeting with the contractor to discuss our concerns about their failure to 
complete the upgrade and failure to provide an updated timetable. 

Develop and implement an indoor leisure 
facilities improvement plan focused on 
improving the health and well- being of 
residents   

 A range of work is underway to help support the review including condition surveys and 
Cheadle consultation. Until these elements are completed the next stages of the projects i.e., 
financial business case assessments, cannot be completed.  

Develop and implement an outdoor 
leisure facilities improvement plan 
focused around the 'sports village' 
concept 

 Projects are still in progress as per the recent committee report. We are not leading on any of 
the projects, they are all being led by third party organisations, we are supplying supporting 
funding. 

Develop a Private Sector Housing 
Strategy to improve conditions for 
homeowners and private tenants  

 The draft strategy may be submitted by an information digest report initially. 

Refresh the Council’s Communication 
Strategy in order to ensure that there is a 
more effective dialogue with residents  

 Information digest report will be prepared. 
 
 

Review the Council's community safety 
arrangements in order to maintain 
strong partnerships with community 
groups 

 ACTION COMPLETED.  
 

Influencing Action: Reducing crime, the 
fear of crime and ASB 

Influencing Action: Combating illegal 
money lenders such as loan sharks 

P
age 37



Priority Actions Status Commentary – September 
Review the Sport and Physical Activity 
Strategy in order to integrate 
communities and sports clubs into the 
delivery of its objectives 

 Information Digest report is being produced and should be issued within the next month. 

Implement the Covid-19 Community 
Recovery Plan 

 The September meeting has been cancelled and will be rearranged. 

Influencing actions 
Ensuring effective health provision 
particularly for the elderly 
 
 

The Council’s Health O&S Panel met on 15th Sept 2021, and members considered the following 
health related matters: - 
• Aftercare Following Discharge from Hospital  
• Midlands Partnership NHS Foundation Trust Annual Update included the latest update 
for Leek Minor Injuries Unit. 
• West Midlands Ambulance Service - Review of Community Ambulance Stations & rural 
provision of the Ambulance Service 
 
The next meeting is scheduled to take place on 15th December 2021. 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 38



0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

On Track Off Track

SM Aim 2 : September Results 2021/22

0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

Better Weaker No Change

SM Aim 2 : September Trends 2021/22

Aim 2: Meet financial challenges and provide value for money 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

There has been an improvement in performance under Aim Two at Staffordshire Moorlands, with 80% on track including invoice payments and 

complaint handling which have pulled back on track. Sickness absence is likely to exceed its reduced 6-day target for the year with 1,306 FTE 

days lost during the first half of 2021/22. Two thirds of these absences are due to cases of long term sickness.  

There has also been an increase in reactive procurements to assist with external funding spend, which has affected the proportion of planned 

commissioning activity. FOI responses have seen a small improvement but remain low.     

Celebrating Success:     

At the end of Q2, the following performance indicators are outstripping their targets: 

✓ IT systems and network availability 

✓ repeat complaints  

✓ customer interactions and portal accounts 

✓ internal audit recommendations implemented 

 

 

P
age 39



2019-2023 Corporate Plan Priority Actions – Progress Highlights 

Priority Actions Status Commentary – September   
Develop and implement a plan to 
identify new and innovative ways of 
generating income 
 

 Individual projects updates within the action: 
Advertising/Sponsorship - On hold  
Fees & Charges- This will feed into the MFTP. 
Empty properties- The empty property review is underway for both authorities and physical 
inspections have commenced where there has been a nil return. MHCLG have confirmed that the 
cut-off date is 4th Oct for the data around long-term empty properties, but we will continue to 
report any updates to 13th Oct. The team are currently processing any changes to the property 
status and an update on the figures for empty properties will be reported at the meeting 
scheduled for 1st Oct. 

Trade Waste- To be picked up when AES project resources become available. 

Refresh and implement the Asset 
Management Plan, including a 
review of public estate, and ensure 
adequate facilities management 
arrangements are in place 

 Individual projects updates within the action: 
Asset Management Plan - This project is broken down into three areas:   
1. Implementation of Concerto (Asset management Database implementation). Core data 
is now live, but additional checks and updates are still required. Compliance data is now 
being input by DCC in anticipation of a data transfer being required to Norse. Stock 
Condition data is being entered as the Stock Con 2 project gathers momentum. Further 
training required if project officer is to utilise project management module. 
2. Stock Condition 2 Project underway. Concertus surveyors are on site until early January. 
Currently slightly behind project programme, but new team starting in September will 
increase capacity.       
3. Asset Management Plan - Stock condition completion required for backlog and capital 
investment data. Initial drafts of Asset Management Policy and Strategy complete and 
ready for discussion with stakeholders. 
Land Disposal strategy - Victoria Business Park Disposal completed September 21.  
Facilities Management Arrangements- DCC and Vertas are still operating the service until 
formal approval of the Norse project. 
 

Develop an Access to Services 
Strategy to ensure that Council 
services are accessible to all 

 Awaiting feedback from Socitm from the August meeting 

Implement the Council’s Efficiency 
and Rationalisation Programme 
(This will focus on several projects 
including procurement, income 

 The current Efficiency Programme (2017-21) is in its final year with savings of £830k to be 
delivered at SMDC. At SMDC (Q1) there is an element of risk attached to £177k of the 
required savings. This will be monitored during the rest of the year with alternative saving 
opportunities investigated. Any shortfall being underwritten by the Efficiency Reserve. The 

P
age 40



Priority Actions Status Commentary – September   
generation, trading, advertising, 
and sponsorship, etc.) 

MTFP process will pick up on any necessary reprofiling. Individual project updates within 
the action:  
Parish Grants - The MTFP revision 2022/23 will incorporate the outcome of the 
consultation currently underway. 
Refresh Efficiency & Rationalisation Programme-The need for a new Efficiency and 
Rationalisation programme will be considered as part of the 2022/23 MTFP refresh 
Hybrid mail- Savings arising from this project will be taken when the post Covid base cost 
level has been established. 

Develop a new Organisational 
Development Strategy to ensure 
effective workforce development   

 Report has been prepared - Due to go to members with other strategies (Feb 2022). 

Develop a new procurement 
strategy with a focus on spending 
money locally 
 

 The strategy is timetabled for decision and implementation in March 2022, due to further 
review on the key priorities and outputs to align with other relevant key strategies                               
currently being developed.  Further consultation is planned with local business forums to 
actively engage local small to medium businesses to gain feedback on our key priorities. 

Develop a new ICT strategy to 
enhance and support the delivery 
of services 

 Meeting held with Socitim in August. Digital Strategy due February 2022 meeting cycle.  
Individual project updates within the strategy:  
Civica Pay- Phase 1 go live planned for 23.08.2021. National deadline for 3Dsecure-v2 has 
been pushed back to Mar 2022. We stuck to the plan and successfully hit our target of 
23rd August 
Civica Open Revenues- The parameters have been amended within the Civica Portal to 
allow the automation of moves to process without intervention and checking. Following 
on from this we have seen a reduction in workload as the majority of moves reported 
through the portal are automating successfully. Customer Services have also seen a 
reduction in referencing work items. Exceptions where there is insufficient information or 
personal details do not match the council tax account are still being reviewed and updated 
by the team. The single person discount review is now live for both authorities and 
accounts are being updated to reflect the outcome of the review. We will hopefully be in a 
position to report the numbers and monetary value of cases updated in the next update. 
All of the modules purchased under phase 1 have now been implemented. 
ICT upgrade- Socitm Advisory team has been engaging widely with stakeholders across the 
councils as well as reviewing our existing digital landscape to form a roadmap which 
considers our architecture as well as our aspirations. Deliverables of the ICT / Digital 
Strategy will rely on this platform, and this is a project that will lead on our future 
opportunities & benefits that could be gained from a wider digital workspace.   
 

P
age 41



Priority Actions Status Commentary – September   
Implement the Covid 19 Reinstating 
Service Plan 

 Review currently under way looking at Moorlands House. Phased reopening of reception 
areas.   

Implement the Covid-19 Financial 
Recovery Plan 

 
September meeting was cancelled, this will be rearranged 

Implement the Covid-19 Positive 
Legacy Plan 

 The agile working policy is still with the Unions, with additional meeting to be arranged to 
review implementation guidance which will incorporate feedback from the staff working 
group that met on the 16th of September. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 42



0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

On Track Off Track

SM Aim 3: September Results 2021/22 

0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

Better Weaker No Change

SM Aim 3 : September Trends 2021/22 

Aim 3: Help create a strong economy by supporting further regeneration of towns and 

villages   

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

The Council is on track for all the targets contained under Aim Three and 100% of major applications have been determined on time.       

 

Celebrating Success:     

At the end of Q2 2021/22, the following performance indicators outstripped their targets: 

✓ major planning applications processed on time 

✓ minor planning applications processed on time 

✓ other planning applications processed on time 

✓ major and minor developments allowed on appeal 

  

 

 

 

P
age 43



2019-2023 Corporate Plan Priority Actions – Progress Highlights 

Priority Actions Status Commentary – September 
Support the development of Cornhill 
and improved rail links 
 

 Individual projects updates within the action: 
Cornhill development (East & West): Reserve Matters planning applications have been 
submitted for both industrial units and for wider housing led scheme.  £575,000 funding 
secured from Getting Building fund to co-finance the industrial units - officers are considering 
timescale for delivery against funding criteria and preparing a report with recommendations 
Rail projects- Heritage railway extension - the grant was at risk but has been temporarily 
secured subject to CVR submission of updated materials. We have worked with Churnet 
Valley Railway (CVR) to secure EAFRD grant until Sept 22. Regeneration and Planning team 
supporting CVR with planning application resubmission as existing permission expired May 
21. Stoke-Leek feasibility study funding application is still pending but £50k awarded for 
feasibility study. 

Influencing Action- Support the 
Churnet Valley Railway with their 
plans to bring trains back to Leek 

Support the development of the 
former Churnet Works site, Leek 

 Subject to existing developer option expiry & continued Travelodge interest, business case 
required for Council led development. 

Develop and implement plans to 
extend the public market operations  

 Meeting held with Quarterbridge Project Management in September to spec report of all 
Staffs Moorlands market operations. Business Case is being prepared for Leek Market Hall. 
Request received for additional market events. Derby Street stalls are due to relocate 6th 
October.  Archer Fair will not be in operation next year. 

Develop a master plan for bringing 
redundant mills back into use 

 Out to tender for consultants- we are in the process of appointing with a view to the end of 
Sept 2021 start. 

Implement the Council’s growth 
strategy to bring about the 
regeneration of towns and rural 
communities 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Biddulph Wharf Rd masterplan- The Aldi site is well under construction. Largest landowner 
actively in discussions with housebuilders but is constrained by access/ ransoms strips. No 
involvement of SMDC in discussions. A small section of SCC land was retained to enable  
access from the second roundabout but will require consultation with the school and Sports 
England over potential loss of provision. Further updates to be requested from all landowners 
shortly. No further contact from Gallagher’s following discussion with Homes England - the 
site doesn’t meet their requirements for funding or the support package 
Investment & Acquisition strategy- Initial strategy completed in 2019 – further development 
of approach to individual sites to be developed as sites are considered 
Tunstall- Masterplan for site already completed which identified the need for stage 2 land 
assembly/equalisation works which might otherwise result in piecemeal development & 
reduced outputs. Stage 2 not yet commissioned.  
Blythe Vale- Draft specification prepared for the development of the masterplan and 
infrastructure outline costs. CRF submission unsuccessful. Budget required to match fund 
with SCC. 

P
age 44



Priority Actions Status Commentary – September 
Influencing Action- Expand the 
Growth Deal Partnership to provide 
inward investment 
 
 
 
 

Cheadle town centre masterplan - The Council's social media channels has received feedback 
from residents that the community newsletter / survey was not received.  The Council has 
made hard copies available to collect from the library and advertised availability via the 
website.  Copies are also available to be posted on request.  The deadline for return of the 
survey has been extended by three weeks to Friday 24th September.  A meeting was held on 
Tuesday 7th September to listen to concerns of local members.  Work is commencing on the 
preparation of messages and a consultation pack for site specific options consultation in the 
autumn. 

Develop a Tourism Strategy to 
maximise the positive impact to our 
communities 

 Specification being prepared 

Implement the Covid-19 Economic 
Recovery Plan 

 September meeting cancelled; this will be rearranged 

Influencing Actions                
Provide bus services which connect 
our villages with our three market 
towns for services, shopping, and 
leisure 

Staffordshire County Council have been successful in a bid to the Rural Mobility Fund to support demand 
responsive transport projects in rural areas. The funding will be used to extend and enhance the 
Moorlands Connect service over the next four years, linking in directly with the scheduled local bus 
services at interchange points in the area to enable onward travel. There will be three buses with 
journeys available from 7am to 7pm Monday to Friday and from 8am to 6pm Saturdays. A service on 
summer Sundays will also be starting from next April.  
The new service will commence on the 25th October 2021. A survey is currently running and has been 
shared with the District Council, all the Parish Councils in the operating area, schools in the area, Leek 
and Buxton College, the local bus service providers and the Peak District National Park. 

Improve access and traffic flows to 
our town centre 

Continued liaison with Development Services and SCC regarding new development sites & key projects 
including Cheadle Town Centre masterplan and Blythe Vale. CRF bid submitted for development of Blythe 
Vale ‘Long list' of projects identified as part of Green Infrastructure plan now being taken forward with 
partners. Awaiting outcome of bid submitted to the Department of Transport’s ‘Restoring Your Railway - 
Ideas Fund’ for a feasibility study for a Stoke-Leek Railway. Development Services update Q2: 
Development Control officers continue to  consults with highways on new schemes and S106 
contributions towards town centre improvements are sought where appropriate. 

 

 

P
age 45



0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

On Track Off Track

SM Aim 4: September Results 2021/22

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Better Weaker No Change

SM Aim 4 : September Trends 2021/22

 

Aim 4: Protect and Improve the Environment 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

There are no measures ‘off track’ at Staffs Moorlands at the close of Q1. Fly tipping is showing an improved trend on last year with 194 

incidents at Staffs Moorlands during the first half of 2021/22. The W.A.R on fly-tipping campaign was launched with the council’s waste 

partner – AES, at the end of the summer.               

Celebrating Success:     

At the end of Q2 2021/22, the following performance indicators outstripped their targets: 

✓ missed bins 

✓ paper consumption 

✓ residual household waste 

✓ high risk premises inspections 

✓ routine permitted process premises inspected  

✓ recycling rates 

 

P
age 46



 

2019-2023 Corporate Plan Priority Actions – Progress Highlights 

Priority Actions  Status Commentary – September 
Identify and implement an approach 
to reduce the cost of country parks 

 A further project meeting has occurred alongside a meeting with SWT to reinvigorate 
action on the project. However there remain a large number of estate/legal matters to 
resolve in regard to this project including the completion and agreement of Heads of 
Terms with SWT and progress on this area has not progressed since the first internal 
project meeting in late June. Officer capacity has been an issue in recent months due to 
holidays etc. 

Develop a plan to improve Brough 
Park and John Hall Gardens 
 

 Brough Park Improvement plan- We have now completed the play area and MUGA works 
and moved to the second phase of refurbishing and re-establishing two tennis courts at 
the site. - Priestwood Vision Ltd have been appointed to refurbish the tennis courts. 

Develop a climate change strategy & 
an action plan of response to a 
declared climate emergency 

 Report being developed. Resident consultation completed.  

Review the Council's waste and 
recycling arrangements to increase 
recycling and to respond to the 
emerging national strategy 

 Consultation responses were issued to DEFRA ahead of 4th July deadline 

Influencing Action- Provide waste 
and recycling centres across the 
district 

Review the Environmental 
Enforcement Policy in order to take 
steps to further reduce 
environmental crime 

 First draft prepared but needs amending in respect of the forecast schedule of linked 
enforcement policies coming forward. 

Develop a new Parking Strategy to 
ensure that our car parks meet the 
needs of residents and visitors 

 Individual project updates within the strategy: 
Parking strategy - Further work being undertaken to financially model the ideas for 
Cheadle Tape Street that have been put forward to determine affordability as part of the 
strategy. This should give the costed options. 
Pay & Display machines - Awaiting actions from car parking review. Influencing Action - The provision of 

accessible on street parking 

 

P
age 47



P
age 48



 

 

P
age 49



 

Areas for Improvement: September 2021  

Measure of Success (PI)  Aim / Objective Service Lead 
Target 

2021/22 

Result 
September 

2021 

Head of Service Commentary (reasons for 
performance / SMART actions to improve) 

% of prevention duty 

discharges resulting in a 

settled accommodation 

outcome 

Aim 1: Increased supply of 
good quality affordable 

homes  

Head of Housing 
Services 

64% 58% The % by which this is off track has improved 

compared to last month. 

 

% of relief duty discharges 

resulting in a settled 

accommodation outcome 

62% 59% Ongoing challenges in demand, availability of 

stock and materials are impacting the result. 

FOI requests: % responded 

to within statutory time 

frame (include numbers in 

commentary) 

Aim 2: Ensure our services 
are easily available to all 

our residents  

Head of Legal and 
Elections 

95% 61.07% 

(182/298) 

Response times have been affected by the impact 

Covid 19 has had on resources within the Service 

Areas 

Joint Alliance Measures 

Ave days sickness per FTE 

(Alliance measure) (include 

short and long-term 

absence per FTE) 

Aim 2: Invest in our staff 
to ensure we have the 
internal expertise to 
deliver our plans by 
supporting our high 

performing and well- 
motivated workforce 

Head of OD and 
Transformation 

6 days 4.29 days Ave days sickness per FTE short term: 1.38 days; 

long term 2.91 days. There have been 1,306 FTE 

days lost to sickness this year of which 888 days 

are due to long term cases. 264 days of the long-

term sickness sit within direct services. 

P
age 50



Measure of Success (PI)  Aim / Objective Service Lead 
Target 

2021/22 

Result 
September 

2021 

Head of Service Commentary (reasons for 
performance / SMART actions to improve) 

% of Procurement activity 

on forward plan (Joint 

Alliance measure) 

Aim 2: Effective 
procurement with a focus 

on local business 

Head of Service 
Commissioning 

68% 51% We have experienced a high degree of new 

activity which has not been forecast ahead of this 

financial year by the Services to inform pipeline 

activity.  The majority of the activity has been 

subject to the outcome of successful funding 

applications which then require procurement 

support but are not certain at the point of 

application and cannot be included on the 

forward plan as the requirements are not known 

at that time. 

 

  

 For a full list of all performance measures and the Q2 results please visit the Performance Management page on the Intranet or click on this link.  

 

P
age 51

https://hpbc.alliance-online.org/system/files/documents/attachments/staffs_moorlands_performance_indicator_database_september.pdf


T
his page is intentionally left blank



  

 
STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

Resources Overview & Scrutiny Panel 
 

17th November 2021 
 

 

TITLE: 
 

Annual Health & Safety Report 2020/2021 
 
PORTFOLIO HOLDER: 

 

Councillor Sybil Ralphs MBE - Council 
Leader SMDC 

 

CONTACT OFFICER: 
 

David G Owen - Corporate Health and Safety 
Adviser 

 
WARDS INVOLVED: 
 

 
Non-specific 

 
Appendices Attached 
Appendix A - Annual Health & Safety Report - 2020/2021 

 
1. Reason for the Report 

 

1.1 The reason for this report it to consider the annual health and safety report as 
required by the Council’s assurance framework.  

 
1.2 It provides an overview of our health and safety arrangements and progress 

made and identifies key areas of focus to ensure the Council maintains its 

health and safety performance. 
 

1.3 Failure to manage health and safety may have a detrimental impact and any 
incidents could lead to people suffering from serious (avoidable) ill health and 
injury.   

 
1.4 Also, legal actions may be taken against the Council in the event of any such 

incidents. Legal actions can impose both financial and reputational risks to the 
Council.  
 

 
2. Recommendation 

2.1 It is recommended that the Resources Overview & Scrutiny Panel notes the    
2020/21 Annual Health and Safety Report. 

 

 
3. Executive Summary 

3.1 The Council and its strategic alliance partner High Peak Borough Council 
recognise their obligations under health and safety legislation and have 
declared their commitment to improving the health, safety, and welfare of their 

Page 53

Agenda Item 10



  

employees, as detailed in the Corporate Health and Safety Policy, and 
accompanying policies. 
 

3.2  The annual health and safety report as attached is to update councillors of the 
key aspects of health and safety which occurred across the two Councils 

during the period from April 2020 to March 2021. This annual report is the 
thirteenth such report for the two Councils making up the Strategic Alliance. 

 

3.3  Over the last thirteen years a lot of effort has gone into strengthening the 
Council’s position in relation to health and safety management. This has been 

a process of reviewing our policies and procedures ensuring that these remain 
relevant and up to date. 

 

3.4  The detail of such actions are provided in the report. The annual report also 
provides, detail on training information, emerging risks and supporting 

statistical information as shown in the appendices. 
 

3.5 The report also details the Council’s commitment to safety during the 

pandemic and the measures taken to protect the health and safety of all those 
who could be affected  

 

 
4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities  
 

4.1 Operating safely is critical to all of the Council’s services and functions. Good 

health and safety arrangements are fundamental to meeting all the 4 corporate 
aims. 

 
 

5. Alternative Options 

 
5.1 There are no options to consider. 

 
 

ANDREW P STOKES 

Chief Executive 

 
Web Links and 
Background Papers 

Contact details 

None David Owen 

Corporate Health and Safety Adviser 
david.owen@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk 
 

 
 

  

Page 54



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
   
 
 
 

 
 
 
      
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

                    
 

Corporate Annual 

Health and Safety Report 

 

Financial Year 

2020/21 

Page 55



 
DGO Annual Report 2020-2021 – August 3rd, 2021 2 

CONTENTS 

 
1. Summary 
 
2. Corporate commitment to health and safety 

 
3. Provision of competent health and safety advice and support 

 
4. Systems in place to identify and assess risks to the organisation 

 

5.  Monitoring of contractors 

 

6.  Consultative arrangements 

 

7.  Corporate health and safety training 

 

8.  Proactive health and safety monitoring 

 

9.  Reactive health and safety monitoring 

 

10. Progress against the action plan for 2020/21 

 

11. Proposed plans and targets for 2021/22 

 

12. Significant and emerging risks 

 

13. Conclusion 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 56



 
DGO Annual Report 2020-2021 – August 3rd, 2021 3 

1.0 Summary 
 
Reviewing performance is an important part of health and safety management as it enables an 
organisation to learn from all relevant experience and apply the lessons. It is based on a systematic 

review of performance based on data from monitoring and audits of the whole health and safety 
management system.  
 
Managing for health and safety (HSG65) a national standard for health and safety management, 
explains the plan, do, check, act approach and shows how it can help organisations like ours to 
achieve a balance between the systems and behavioural aspects of management. It also treats health 
and safety management as an integral part of good management generally, rather than as a stand -
alone system. 
 
 

 
 
 
In adopting this model, we ensure policies; procedures and systems are in place to meet the 

requirements of current legislation and best practice.  Principal areas of work include an ongoing 
review of the safety management systems in order to ensure they are robust in light of legislation 
regarding corporate manslaughter and recommendations promoted by the Institute of Directors and 
Health and Safety Executive guidance ‘Leading Health & Safety at Work’ 2013. 
 
Over the last thirteen years we have been working to strengthen the Council’s position in relation to 
health and safety management. This has been a process of gradually tightening up on our policies 
and procedures and ensuring that these remain relevant and up to date.  
 
We now have improved systems for carrying out risk assessments and making sure that they are 

regularly reviewed; for tracking of lone workers; workstation assessments and for many other aspects 
of a good health and safety management system. The system remains live and continues to undergo 
a process of continuous improvement.  
 
As noted in the body of this report, considerable work has taken place to ensure we remain ‘leading 
edge’ Councils from a health and safety perspective. 
 

Page 57



 
DGO Annual Report 2020-2021 – August 3rd, 2021 4 

 
 
Our ongoing emphasis is on a sensible, risk-based approach, building health and safety into our 
normal way of working rather than regarding it as an ‘add  on’ to ensure that we get it right and keep it 
that way.  
 
The activities of the health and safety function have been previously subjected to a review by internal 
audit. Our arrangements have also been previously reviewed by Zurich our insurers who have 

categorised our approach to health and safety as good to best practice.  
 
This report refers to key aspects of health and safety that occurred across High Peak Borough 
Council and Staffordshire Moorlands District Council. The report covers the period from the beginning 
of April 2020 to the end of March 2021.  
 
The report also provides supporting statistical information in the appendices.  
 

 

2. Corporate commitment to health and safety 

 
Both Councils recognise their obligations under health and safety legislation and have declar ed their 
commitment to improving the health, safety and welfare of their employees and others within the 
corporate health and safety policy. 
 
Parts of the electronic health and safety portfolio have been reviewed during 2020-21. This review 

has taken account of changes in legislation, and changes in job titles, the detail of the policies that 
have been reviewed can be found in the body of this report. 
 
Operational risk assessments have had to be continually reviewed to respond to the challenges 
brought about by the Coronavirus Pandemic, once reviewed these have been shared with staff and 
the Trades Unions. 
 
Finally, all changes as above have been endorsed by the Alliance Leadership Team, and Corporate 
Health and Safety Compliance Group. 
 

  

3. Provision of competent health and safety advice and support 
 
The corporate health and safety function comprises of one post – being the full time 37-hour post held 
by the Corporate Health and Safety Adviser, who manages the function. He is a Registered Safety 

Practitioner and Chartered Member of the Institute of Occupational Health and Safety.  
 
The post holder is the ‘competent person’ as defined in the Management of Health and Safety at 
Work Regulations 1999.Regulation 7. He also leads on fire safety, emergency planning and business 
continuity planning across the two councils.  
 
The Corporate Health and Safety Adviser oversees the operation of the policy and safety 
management system on behalf of the Chief Executive and reports directly to him. 
 
When the Chief Executive is on leave, the Corporate Health and Safety Adviser reports to the Deputy 
Chief Executive.  

 

Page 58



 
DGO Annual Report 2020-2021 – August 3rd, 2021 5 

He plays a vital role overseeing and promoting good health and safety management, ensuring 
accountability, and reviewing the way things are done. All actions are aimed at encouraging a positive 
safety culture within the Council, and that the function is seen as a tool to ensure goals are achieved 
and projects succeed, rather than being used as a restrictive one.  
 
One of the key roles of the team this year was to provide support and guidance to acting Heads of 
Services to assist them with understanding and then undertaking their duties and responsibilities in 
managing health and safety within their respective teams.  

 
Some of the support provided includes: 

 

 
 

4. Systems in place to identify and assess risks 
 

All new legislation and supporting guidance is reviewed by the Corporate Health and Safety Adviser, 
to determine whether action is necessary to meet these requirements within the Council.  New or 
significant changes in policy are agreed by the Alliance Leadership Team, the Trades Unions and the 
Corporate Health and Safety Compliance Group. 
 
The cornerstone of health and safety is risk assessment. The risk assessment process is embedded 
within the Electronic Safety Management System and training is provided as required to ensure 
competent persons are available to undertake appropriate risk assessments. 
 
The Chief Executive and Heads of Service are nominated ‘Safety Champions’ across the two 

councils. This role includes being responsible for the general co-ordination, implementation and 
monitoring of the health and safety policy and performance within their respective service areas.   
 
The introduction of ‘safety champions’ ensures that health and safety issues are considered for all 
major projects at the concept stage, where interaction is essential to maintain standards without 
incurring additional costs and ensure ownership of health and safety at service area level.  
 
The Chief Executive chairs the Corporate Health and Safety Compliance Group supported by the 
Corporate Health and Safety Adviser and they meet regularly to discuss health and safety and 
emergency planning matters.  

 
 

5. Monitoring of contractors 
 
The pre-qualification questionnaire (PQQ) assessments for health and safety are carried out by the 
Corporate Health and Safety Adviser. Other staff are involved in assessing quality, finance, and other 

elements of this proactive process. This approach rigorously assesses suitability of prospective 
contractors wanting to work for the Council. 
 
Unannounced health and safety inspections and performance audits take place to ensure the 
activities of our contractors are regularly monitored. Issues of non compliance are brought to the 
attention of the procurement/contract monitoring officer for rectification. With major contracts, regular 
progress meetings take place where health and safety is a standing agenda item.  
 
On occasions where contractors are found to be working in a non-complaint way, meetings are set up 
to offer advice and guidance to ensure health and safety standards are improved. Where there are 

Advising on 
safety 

training  
Home Visits 

Inspections 

and Audits 

Bespoke 

Training 
Advice 

Assistance 
Accident & 
incidents. 

Overview Policy 
& Guidance 

Development 

Page 59



 
DGO Annual Report 2020-2021 – August 3rd, 2021 6 

cases of repeated non-compliance, contractors are not invited to tender for works until they can 
demonstrate significant improvements have taken place. 
 
On larger construction projects where the full application of the CDM (Construction Design and 
Management Regulations 2015 applies; the monitoring of contracts is also carried out by Principal 
Designers and CDM Advisers who are engaged by the Assets Team.  
 
The CDM Adviser role is not a legal requirement but does offer competent advice and support to 

those overseeing major construction projects. 
 
6 audits and 6 site inspections have taken place during this year of contractors carrying out works for 
the Councils, the outcomes have been generally good. 
 
 

6. Consultative arrangements 

 
Our Corporate Health and Safety Compliance Group is chaired by the Chief Executive and includes 
representatives from all medium to high-risk areas across the two councils, meets four times a year.  
 
We use video conferencing and Microsoft teams facilities during these meetings to reduce mileage 
and officer time.   
 
The group has worked so far within the spirit of co-operation with consultation taking place on several 
key subjects including: 

 

 Outcomes of planned health and safety inspections 

 Fire risk assessment findings, required actions 

 Discussion and approval of revisions of corporate policies such as the Electricity at Work Policy, 
Working at Heights Guidance, Managing Contractors Policy, Accident Reporting Procedure, DSE 
Policy, COSHH Policy, Bouncy Castle and Inflatables Policy and the Pregnant Workers Guidance. 

 Fire Authority Involvement at SMDC and HPBC 

 Monitoring accident and near miss statistics, trends, and costs 

 Highlighting contractor management/ compliance issues  

 Vertas compliance Issues  

 Public Convenience Inspections 

 Health and safety issues in Sheltered Schemes and Housing Blocks 

 National HSE prosecution/notifications and updates 

 Developing tool box talks, safety alerts and bulletins 

 Promoting health and safety across the two Councils  

 Receiving updates from partner organisations 

 COVID-19-HSE Audit outcomes 

 Radon issues at Buxton Town Hall, and other properties and monitoring within the housing stock 

 Discussing staff concerns 

 Discussing mental health and well-being. 
 
Four meetings are planned for the year 2021/22 coinciding with the Emergency Planning Compliance 
Group. 
 
 

7. Corporate health and safety training 

 
Each year the Corporate Health and Safety Adviser organises, develops, and delivers several health 
and safety and emergency planning training courses. The courses are run throughout the year and 
are available to all staff.  
 
Due to COVID restrictions most of our health and safety training courses for this financial year were 

carried out via the ‘e’ Essentials system.  

Page 60



 
DGO Annual Report 2020-2021 – August 3rd, 2021 7 

 
In this way training is given at a time convenient for the person being trained and gives us evidence 
that confirms those receiving the training have read and understood it. This method of training 
reduces the resources required to deliver these courses and the time employees are away from their 
duties. 
 
In some cases, face to face training, such as for the asbestos awareness courses will always be the 
preferred training delivery. 

 
As will be appreciated, many of the courses have focused on the various aspects of the COVID-19 
Pandemic, and have ensured our staff are aware of changes and what is expected of them. Similarly, 
as 90% of our staff have been working at home, training was given that ensured staff were safe whilst 
doing so. 
 
A toolbox talk is an informal safety briefing that forms part of our overall safety program. Toolbox talk 
briefings are a short training opportunity taking no more than 20 minutes for the person being trained 
to read through. They cover special topics on a range of health and safety aspects. 
 

Several specific health and safety courses and 2 civil protection courses were run throughout the year 
with 2924 training places taken.  
 
The training developed by or given by the Corporate Health and Safety Adviser is indicated by an 
asterisk *, all other training has been provided by external providers. 
 
 
Below are details of the health and safety training provided: 
 

Title Date Numbers 

   
Face Fit Training -Respiratory Protection 2020-21 34 

Collection and Disposal of sharps *   6 

DSE Assessors Training *  15 

DSE Policy*  43 

Health and Safety Induction*  12 

Coronavirus- Vehicle Cleaning Tool Box Talk *  139 

Coronavirus- Property Cleaning Tool Box Talk *  86 

Coronavirus- Wearing PPE Tool Box Talk *  319 

Coronavirus- Safe Working at Home *  305 

Coronavirus- Recognising symptoms this winter*  286 

Coronavirus- Fire Safety *  307 

Coronavirus- Office Safety Rules*  299 

Coronavirus- Lifting the Lockdown Guidance*  227 

Coronavirus- Returning to the Workplace*  233 

Fire Safety on Line *  274 

Are you sitting comfortably? *  282 

Health and Safety Champions Training *   12 

Strategic Emergency Response     1 

Page 61



 
DGO Annual Report 2020-2021 – August 3rd, 2021 8 

CITB STMS -Site Management Safety Training    4 

Legionella Management training     1 

Asbestos Awareness on Line   39 

   

   
Number of training places taken by staff attending 
health and safety courses including E-learning 

 

 

2924 
 

 

 

8. Proactive health and safety monitoring 

 

8.1 Audits  

 
Health and safety audits are undertaken to identify, monitor and eradicate any potential risks 
associated with unsuitable equipment and/or procedures.  
 

Due to the additional work created by the COVID-19 Pandemic I have not been able to carry out the 
two planned health and safety audits. 
 

8.2 Inspections 

 
The purpose of workplace inspections is to identify any safety issues that require remedial action.  
 

Whilst the programme of inspections has been disrupted due to buildings being closed and key staff 
not being able to attend, I have managed to pull back some of the delayed inspections and have 
carried out 53 proactive health and safety inspections took place. 
 
The frequency of these inspections has been previously agreed with the Health and Safety Executive 
and is seen as ‘about right’ for the risks involved. These inspections have highlighted areas where 
improvements have been made and conversely highlight improvements to be made. This enables the 
two councils to manage, limit, and where possible, offset their potential for liability. 
 
The regime of planned inspections includes all corporate buildings, leisure centres and swimming 
pools; this coupled with site visits that highlight that our partners are working in accordance with 

industry standards. Where issues of non-compliance have been highlighted subsequent meetings 
have taken place with those contractors to prioritise the actions required. Issues of non-compliance 
are also brought to the attention of our service partners at their operational meetings. 
 
In addition to the corporate regime of health and safety inspections, a new regime of health and safety 
inspections was introduced in 2016 in the sheltered schemes at High Peak Borough Council. 15 
inspections now take place a year.  
 
All staff carrying out these inspections have been trained by the Corporate Health and Safety Adviser, 
this process is now working very well. 

 
 
Closed Churchyards 
 
In addition to the detail above 5 health and safety inspections of closed churchyards in the High Peak 
and Staffordshire Moorlands areas took place to support the Cemeteries Officer. 
 
Once a Church of England Churchyard closes for burials, the liability and maintenance of them 
passes on to the Council under the 1972 Local Government Act. 
 

Page 62



 
DGO Annual Report 2020-2021 – August 3rd, 2021 9 

A significant amount of work will be required to address many of the items raised, however it is hoped 
that in partnership with the Parochial Church Councils’ closed churchyards can be effectively 
managed, and the significant risks, reduced, managed, or addressed.  
 

8.3 Environmental monitoring  

 
Work continued in relation to monitoring of the workplace.  
 
A continued provision of health surveillance for high-risk employees in respect of audiometric testing 
and vibration assessments is carried out in conjunction with the human resources team.  
 
There have been 12 SMDC staff referrals and 10 HPBC staff referrals to Occupational Health within 
the period covered by this report. 
 
In addition to the above new starters have been referred as part of the pre employment offer medical 

assessments. 
 
Radon monitoring has been carried out across the two councils and this issue is covered in more 
detail in paragraph 12 of this report. 
 
 

9. Reactive health and safety monitoring 

 

9.1 Accident and assault statistics 

 
All accidents resulting in lost time 7 days or more that occurred across the two councils were 
investigated and corrective and preventative measures put in place as required. 
 

A summary of accident information and accident category type is attached in the appendices at the 
end of this report. 
 
The accidents/incidents for the last financial year are 3 accidents, 3 were non lost time, NLT  0 were 
lost time meaning off work for 7 days and above, and 11 near miss/verbal threats. 
 
2 Accidents occurred to members of the public of which 1 was reported to HSE, one related to a third 
party slipping and breaking a wrist at Leek Butter market, the second a market trader in the Leek 
Market was clearing away her stall when a partition fell on her. 
 

There were no accidents or near misses to staff based or working in the Staffordshire Moorlands 
District Council area. 
 
 

 Alliance accidents 

  
(HSE) RIDDOR Reportable 1* Member of Public 

Non - (HSE) RIDDOR Reportable 3 

Threats/Near Miss 11 

Members of the Public 2 

  
TOTAL  3 

Page 63



 
DGO Annual Report 2020-2021 – August 3rd, 2021 10 

Lost Time Accidents   

 
 

Service Area Lost days Injury 

    None  

   Total days lost 0  

 
The fact that 90 % of staff have worked at home this financial year has impacted positively on our 
accident statistics. Therefore, the accident statistics for this year should not be seen as a 
representative year for the reasons stated in this report. 
 
 

9.2 Enforcement notices, Fee for Intervention costs 

 
Our relationship with the Health and Safety Executive (HSE) and two Fire Authorities continued to be 
good in 2020-21, with no enforcement action or intervention from them. 

During 2020-21, the Health and Safety Executive carried out COVID-19 spot checks and inspections 

by calling, visiting employers, and inspecting all types of businesses in all areas to ensure they were 
working safely. 

A site visit took place to Victoria Hall in Glossop and a telephone audit took place that covered both 
Councils. This confirmed the Health and Safety Executive were assured that our part occupied 
Council buildings offered a COVID secure environment for our staff and visitors. 

Such confirmation offers further reassurances and confidence to our staff who will be returning to their 
office base, who may be feeling anxious and stressful. 

Derbyshire Fire and Rescue Service had planned to carry out a fire safety audit in February 2021, this 
did not take place. The outcomes of three fire safety audits will form part of my annual report for 2021-
2022. 

9.3 Dangerous Occurrences - Diseases 

 
There were no dangerous occurrences reported during the period 2020-2021.   
 

9.4 Achievement awards 

 
The Council has not actively pursued any external achievement awards during 2020-21. 

 
  

10. Actions undertaken in 2020/21 
 

Actions Status 

  1. Review the health and safety portfolio Achieved 

2. Carried out an inspection of Cromford Court and Eccles Fold Sheltered 
Schemes 

Achieved 

3. Reduce accidents to less than <20, reducing RIDDOR reportables to 0. 
 

Part Achieved 

4. Carry out fire risk assessments of all corporate buildings 95% Achieved 

5. Carry out planned health and safety inspections across all the council and 

partner managed buildings 

Achieved 

Page 64



 
DGO Annual Report 2020-2021 – August 3rd, 2021 11 

6. Complete two health and safety performance audits inspections   Not achieved  

7. Update corporate guidance in line with changes in legislation Achieved 

8. Carry out accident investigations of lost time accidents Achieved 

9. Develop six tool box talks. Developed 14- mainly COVID related Achieved  

10. Reviewed the health and safety training matrix - post AES transfer Achieved 

11.     Developed and delivered training in manual handling for the Housing Repairs 
Team and others 

Achieved 

12.     Carry out Mental Health Awareness Training Achieved by an 
external provider 

13 Develop a fire safety strategy for Sheltered Schemes and review the Fire 

Safety Policy 

Not Achieved 

14. Carry out accident investigations over 7-day accidents Achieved 

15 Carry out a public liability Inspection of public conveniences Achieved 

16 Review the Terms of Reference for the Corporate Health and Safety 
Compliance Group 

Achieved 

17 Carry out Risk Assessment training Not Achieved 

18 Carry out Fire Risk Assessment training for Housing Officers Not Achieved 

19 Provide fire extinguisher training as required Not Achieved 

20 Carry out health and safety training for Sheltered Scheme Officers and 
Housekeepers 

Not Achieved 

21 Review the CDM, Fire, Noise, and musculoskeletal policies Part Achieved 

22 Carry out unannounced health and safety site inspections- contractors Achieved 

23 Carry out Inspection audit of CDM compliance. Not Achieved 

24 Develop Health and Safety Training Package for Carelink Staff Not Achieved 

25 Carry out training for the Housing Repairs Team and Caretakers Not Achieved 

 
 

Other additional key actions undertaken 

 

 Carried out arson risk assessments for 5 vacant Council buildings. 

 Undertook health and safety consultation work for New Mills and Biddulph Town Councils. 

 Developed a fire safety checklist for general needs accommodation units 

 Gave advice on the Heath Reservoirs in Glossop 

 Gave advice on the new asbestos surveying specification 

 Attended or accessed 29 meetings relating to COVID. 

 Collected PPE for funeral directors as part of the COVID response 

 Advised on the correct specifications for personal protective equiment 

 Advised the Reinstating of Services Recovery-Sub Group 

 Made dally COVID Situation Reports to the Staffordshire Resilience Forum. 

 Reviewed the Alliance Business continuity plan and established the priority meanings 

 Developed service level agreements for New Mills Town Council- and Biddulph Town Council-  

 Updated the fire risk assessment format used in communal areas of Housing blocks. 

 Led the Councils out of hours responses to 42 incidents and Storm Christoph attended TCG 
meetings, site visits etc., 

 Assisted with the review of the Commercial Tenants handbook. 

Page 65



 
DGO Annual Report 2020-2021 – August 3rd, 2021 12 

 Developed a DSE Workstation Assessors and training package and arranged the training. 

 Developed a generic and specific risk assessment template and polling station layout document for 
use during the May 2021 Elections during COVID-19, carried out calculations to ensure 
compliance at the count venues. 

 Gave fire safety and asbestos guidance for inclusion in a newsletter for HPBC Tenants. 

 Carried out health and safety inspections of the HPBC- Housing Repairs Team 

 Completed 12 health and safety assessments PQQ. 

 Developed a COVID-19 Return to the Workplace Presentation 

 Assisted Democratic Services in planning the HPBC Mayoral Celebration. 

 Advised on the revisions to Operation Bridge plan. 
 

11. Plans and targets for 2021/22 
 

 Carry out an inspection of Northlands, Hartington Gardens and Queens Court. 

 Carry out Fire Risk Assessments in corporate buildings and two Sheltered Schemes. 

 Carry out accident investigations for all over 7-day accidents 

 Maintain the regime of planned health and safety inspections  

 Reduce accidents to less than <20 and reduce RIDDOR reportables to 0. 

 Develop at least 6 Tool Box Talks -Safety Alerts- News from the Court, briefings 

 Carry out risk assessment training. 

 Carry out unannounced site inspections of contractors 

 Provide fire risk assessment training for the Housing Team 

 Provide fire extinguisher training as required. 

 Carry out an inspection audit of CDM compliance. 

 Carry out refresher workplace inspection training for Scheme Officers 

 Review the Fire Safety, First aid, Noise, Musculoskeletal, and the Construction Design and 

Management (CDM) Policies 

 Develop a health and safety training package for Carelink staff 

 Carry out a health and safety audit of the Carelink service  

 Carry out 2 Health and Safety performance audits – Parkwood and DCC 

 Follow up complex ergonomic DSE-Self Assessments- homeworkers 

 Carry out training for the Housing Repairs Team and Caretakers 
 
 

12. Significant and emerging risks 
 

Significant risks within the Council 

 
Due to the diverse work of the Council, a variety of risks are present.  
 

Manual handling and lifting 

 
A robust manual handling and lifting policy is in place, and manual handling training has been given to 

high-risk worker groups which includes the Housing Repairs Team and the Estate Caretakers.  
 
A new risk assessment format for manual handling was introduced in 2018 following changes at 
national level, promoted by the HSE Health and Safety Executive. 
 
Our approach to manual handling is as follows. 
 
Avoid hazardous manual handling operations ‘so far as is reasonably practicable’, by redesigning the 
task to avoid moving the load or by automating or mechanising the process. 
 
Make a suitable and sufficient assessment of the risk of injury from any hazardous manual handling 

operations that cannot be avoided. 
 

Page 66



 
DGO Annual Report 2020-2021 – August 3rd, 2021 13 

Reduce the risk of injury from those operations so far as is reasonably practicable, by breaking loads 
into manageable pieces or sharing the load. Where possible, provide mechanical assistance, for 
example, a sack trolley or hoist.  
 
Where this is not reasonably practicable, then explore changes to the task, the load, and the working 
environment. 
 

Hand Arm Vibration 

 
A robust policy is in place which was scrutinized by the Health and Safety Executive (HSE) during 
2018. 
 

This encourages the purchase of low vibration equipment and promotes job rotation to reduce 
adverse medical effects. Those worker groups at high risk have received training during 2019 and 21 
additional vibration assessments were carried out to ensure our equipment is safe to use, and staff 
know how to report vibration ill health conditions.  
 
Trigger on time monitoring has taken place; this information is used in association with the vibration 
readings to determine the time a person uses a piece of equipment and ensures the exposure action 
levels are not breached. 
 
Our vibration emitting equipment is regularly serviced, and is colour coded this relates to the vibration 

levels taken. Those using the equipment fully understand what the colour coding means. 
 
Our Hand Arm Vibration Syndrome (HAVS) Matrix was last updated in 2019. This gives guidance to 
our employees on safe use of vibration emitting equipment, and time restrictions.   
 
In addition to these proactive actions, those at risk, from vibration induced injury, are regularly 
assessed by our Occupational Health provider, which alerts us to early symptoms and any required 
changes. 
 

Asbestos 

 
Our corporate policy on the management of asbestos details the arrangements for managing 
asbestos. Individual responsibilities are allocated within the policy. 
 
As asbestos in many forms is prevalent in many Council buildings and our housing stock, we must 

ensure that the asbestos is risk assessed surveys are provided and management carries out annual 
inspections where this is required. This is to ensure that the asbestos stock remains safe and is well 
managed. Surveys are also carried out in communal areas of sheltered schemes and domestic 
properties where construction work is carried out. 
 
At present, Derbyshire County Council (DCC) supports us in arranging the management surveys on 
corporate buildings and carrying out the recorded annual ‘management’ inspections. Tersus currently 
provide surveys for the housing elements of HPBC.  
 
To further enforce the principles of the policy which includes a permit to work system, additional 

training has taken place during 2020 so key staff are aware of their specific responsibilities. New 
surveys are developed where intrusive works take place, and as a result the ‘management surveys’ 
are updated to capture all of the information from the intrusive survey. 
 
Several new asbestos ‘management surveys’ were provided during 2020-21. 
 
An asbestos register, which holds all the asbestos surveys across the Council corporate and housing 
stock, is being developed by the Head of Assets. A new software package will assist in ensuring the 
required documentation is available for use.  
 

Page 67



 
DGO Annual Report 2020-2021 – August 3rd, 2021 14 

To strengthen the competency levels within the Assets Team, three officers have attended the 
nationally recognised P405: The Management of Asbestos in Buildings. Now that they have attended 
the training, they have the practical knowledge and skills to manage asbestos in buildings and have a 
sound knowledge base to audit asbestos removal projects. 
 
The management of asbestos across the two Councils is managed by the Assets Team supported by 
competent contractors. 

 

Legionella 

 
Our corporate policy on the management of Legionella was updated and issued in 2020 to reflect 
changes to the ‘Responsible Person’ role and changes in the senior management structure.  
 
Given that there is a risk of Legionella developing in our water systems, we must ensure that the risk 
of Legionella is assessed, and management (through our contractors) carry out annual inspections, 
temperature readings, and treatment and replacement of systems as required. DCC and other 
contractors now carry out all monitoring for us through their preferred contractors - DCC uses their 
agent Hydro X to carry out this work.  

 
The DCC property services team and S3 Compliance (for non-corporate properties) carry out regular 
monitoring to ensure full compliance with the policy. Surveys and risk assessments are reviewed 
regularly, and temperature monitoring is carried out monthly by trained persons.  
 
Considerable work was also undertaken, and is continuing, in areas such as asbestos management 
and Legionella management. The regular inspection regime and follow up audits, along with the 
development of an Asset Management Plan, are assisting us in progressing with the required 
improvements in these areas. This has been an important step towards minimising the risks posed by 
these health hazards. 
 

The Head of Assets and her team are overseeing this work. Those fulfilling roles as detailed within the 
policy, have recently attended external training, confirming their competency. 
 
New legionella risk assessments will be commissioned in 2021-22 once the backlog of remedial 
works have taken place. 
 

Fire Safety 

 
Given the age and condition of some of the Council buildings a low to medium risk of fire exists. From 
2005 there was a legal requirement on Councils to carry out fire risk assessments and review these 

annually.  
 
In 2015 the fire safety policy was again updated and a new fire risk assessment pro forma introduced, 
following changes raised in the Grenfell Tower Inquiry and subsequent report our Fire Safety Policy 
will be updated during 2021-22.  
 
This, process along with the building condition surveys, statutory testing, inspection, and staff training, 
helps us to mitigate fire risks.  
 
All our sheltered schemes (High Peak Borough Council), and all our corporate buildings and 

communal areas of flats, have a detailed fire risk assessment these are reviewed regularly. For 
corporate buildings Derbyshire County Council is working through the various action plans and 
prioritising the actions required, for others the Assets Team are actioning these on a risk basis. 
 
Employees are provided with regular fire safety training; In 2018 I developed a new online training 
package; this assists us in meeting our training obligations without causing significant disruption to 
operational activities by staff being taken away from their duties for training.  
 
274 employees have received ‘fire safety on line’ training over the last 12 months. 

Page 68



 
DGO Annual Report 2020-2021 – August 3rd, 2021 15 

 
 
In the Sheltered Schemes, ‘fire safety in the home’ talks have taken place, to raise awareness 
amongst our tenants. This training has been provided in association with the Fire Safety Team at 
Derbyshire Fire and Rescue Service. 
 
The ‘Stay Put Policy’ documents in place at the Sheltered Schemes are now titled ‘Stay Put/Defend in 
Place’ Policies to avoid confusion. 

 
Following the outcomes of the fire risk assessments some further fire safety improvements are 
required in the Sheltered Schemes. These improvements relate to the upgrading of fire alarm 
systems, and the need to upgrade cold smoke seals and fire doors.  
 
The Assets Team are costing out the works, and the improvements will commence in 2021, at 
Cromford Court, Whaley Bridge, Eccles Fold, Chapel en le Frith, and Marian Court, Buxton. 
 
We liaise regularly with both Fire and Rescue Services, this approach has led to a positive working 
arrangement, with no enforcement issues.  

 
During this financial year there have not been any fires in any of our corporate buildings. 
 

Domestic Housing property fires 

 
 
During this financial year, there have been no fires within our domestic housing stock. 
 

Radon 

 
Radon levels at Buxton Town Hall are currently maintained at a level below the average action level 

of 300 Becquerels. 
 
The 30-year-old radon remediation system is serviced by a specialist contractor every spring, with 
filters changed every six months. There have been no significant issues with the radon remediation 
unit this year. 
 
Ongoing radon monitoring will be carried out throughout the year to monitor radon trends. 
 
Previously radon levels in the Staffordshire Moorlands area have been very low, a check of these will 
be carried out during 2021-22. 

 
Radon in corporate buildings is overseen by the author of this report, and further reports are issued as 
the results are received and remedial action is taken as is required by the external contractor. 
 
Radon in the HPBC housing stock is managed by the Assets Team supported by a competent 
contractor 
 

Working at Heights 

 
On the HPBC side of the Alliance we have staff that regularly work at heights on scaffolds and 

accessing work from ladders. They have been recently trained in safe working at height practices 
point of work risk assessments are being developed, and other task specific risk assessments have 
been updated.  
 
Wherever possible, working at heights should be avoided. Ladder work should be strictly controlled, 
and ladders should only be used as a working platform, where it is not practicable to use other 
means. 
 

Page 69



 
DGO Annual Report 2020-2021 – August 3rd, 2021 16 

Scaffolding towers and other safer methods of working have been introduced. A 6 monthly recorded 
ladder/platform inspection takes place, and a visual inspection of the ladder/platform takes place 
before it is used. 
 

Home Working 

 
With 90% of our workforce moving to working from home following Government guidance to do so, 
the councils have had to respond appropriately to meet various challenges of a home environment.  

This has included:  

 

 Enabling staff to take furniture and ICT equipment home to enable them to work from home 

 Heads of Service reviewing deadlines to potentially re-order work priorities where appropriate.  

 The development of an Agile Working Policy to offer some staff the option of continuing to part 
work from home utilise homeworking where appropriate. 

 Supporting staff to work safely at home, enabling them to work their hours around home 
demands where possible.  

 

The Councils responded to employees working from home by seeking to stabilise home working 
environments in support of musculoskeletal health.  

This was achieved by producing a revised homeworkers checklist for staff, tool box talks, safe 
systems of work and a number of home visits. 

 

Employee Well Being 

 
The Councils are committed to improving and sustaining the health and wellbeing of its employees, 
through supporting a healthy and productive workforce that is highly engaged with the overall 

objectives of the Council.  
 
We do this by placing importance on preventative health initiatives, providing tools and support to 
encourage people to stay fit, happy, and healthy.  

 
An innovation to assist staff in staying fit and healthy is a walking scheme promoted by the Service 
Commissioning Team 

 
Flu Vaccination  

 
During last winter, 125 employees had free flu vaccinations. It will be even more important this year 
than in previous years to encourage take-up by staff, given the positive effect this will have on 
protecting health services from the impact of flu this year. During 2021-22 we plan to offer staff 
COVID-19 booster jabs as part of the planned vaccination programme, in accordance with 
government guidelines. 

 
Musculoskeletal  

 
We recognise that musculoskeletal problems can be a reason for sickness. We continue to encourage 
staff to complete the new self DSE assessment process and seek support from the Corporate Health 
and Safety Adviser carried out 4 ergonomic home visits and 5 other personal risk assessments during 
the last financial year to ensure staff are not a risk from musculoskeletal and other problems.  
 
5 staff were referred to Occupational Health and as a result, adjustments were put in place.  

 
Mental Health and Wellbeing 

Page 70



 
DGO Annual Report 2020-2021 – August 3rd, 2021 17 

 
The Councils recognise that mental ill-health is a health and safety issue for both Heads of Service, 
and employees; it acknowledges the importance of identifying and reducing work place stressors 
where possible.  
 
A mental health awareness session took place in September 2019 and the intention is to develop a 
strategy to support Heads of Service and staff by appointing and training key staff to be ‘mental health 
first aiders.  
 
The purpose of this role is threefold, being able to recognise the early signs and symptoms of 
common workplace mental health illnesses, having the necessary skills to have a supportive, non-

judgmental conversation with those who need it, and possessing the knowledge and confidence to 
guide colleagues to the appropriate professional support if they require it. 
 
During the COVID lock downs we maintained a regular dialogue with staff through tool box talks and 
the ‘Keeping you Informed electronic newsletter, and the Monthly Team Briefings’ who may have 
been affected by home working, and potential mental health concerns, issuing guidance on where to 
find help and support. 

 
Occupational Heath support 

 

The external Occupational Health provider has continued to meet the organisation’s requirements for 
dealing with and promoting health at work issues.  

 
The core functions of Occupational Health are work-health assessment screening, sickness absence 
management and health promotion.  The Occupational Health service also provides a proactive 
health surveillance programme.  
 

This is based on health surveillance checks, consisting of hand-arm vibration, audiometry, vision 
screening and in some cases a general life-style check. 
 

Coronavirus 

 
Any given year will bring its challenges around service delivery, with unplanned and ad-hoc issues.  
 
However, the COVID-19 global pandemic that has emerged in the last 12 months has given the 
Councils and in particular the health and safety function its largest challenge ever. The impact that 
COVID-19 has wreaked on individuals, families, communities, and the economy is unprecedented.  

 
The Councils have had to rapidly respond to a constantly changing situation and continue to do so.  
 
Practically overnight, this affected the health and safety work programme and priorities and saw the 
immediate suspension of planned audits, inspections and training, the work of other teams was 
heavily impacted upon too.  
 
There was a need for us rapidly redeploy resources and adapt their skillsets to focus on each COVID 
related challenge as they became apparent, from creating the initial COVID Secure risk assessments 
through to translating a myriad of government advice, scientific studies, and sector practise.  

 
Site surveys were undertaken of all our buildings to ensure that each environment was adapted to be 
COVID-19 secure, updates were shared with staff via the intranet to make sure employees knew what 
to expect if they needed to access our buildings.  

As previously highlighted in this report, the HSE carried out site visit and a COVID-19 Telephone 
Compliance audit, and as a result they confirmed our premises were categorised as Covid Secure. 

 
The passion and professionalism of those who work for the two Councils was evident, the COVID 
response was a professional one involving the ALT all teams, which enabled rapid but well-informed 
decisions to be made.  

Page 71



 
DGO Annual Report 2020-2021 – August 3rd, 2021 18 

 
As this report evidences, our commitment to health and safety remains vigilant and committed to the 
control of all workplace risks, not just COVID-19. As such we have continued to implement and drive 
improvements to ensure compliance and effective management of risks. 

 
 

13. Conclusion 
 
I am pleased to produce my thirteenth Annual Health and Safety Report for 2020-21.  
 
The last twelve months have been the most challenging period in recent years for the country, during 
the coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic, many people in the UK have lost their lives before their time. 
 
The result of the pandemic means that all the incomplete actions from the previous financial year 

have had to be brought forward into this year’s actions to ensure they are completed.  
 
This report summarises the performance and programme of work undertaken at a corporate and 
operational level during 2020/21 and demonstrates an ever-developing safety culture that ensures 
high standards in health and safety management.  
 
We have come a long way in establishing our Electronic Health and Safety Portfolio in 2009 and 
embedding a positive safety culture.  
  
We must continue to develop our positive safety culture, to ensure that it will be robust enough to 

positively impact on the environments in which our staff work, reducing the numbers of incidents 
within our work places and stand up to scrutiny from both external enforcing authorities and internal 
scrutiny whilst providing a sensible and cost-effective approach to managing risk. 
 
It is imperative that we continue to demonstrate that our staff have the skills, knowledge, training, and 
experience to fulfil their respective roles.  
 
Being able to demonstrate a commitment to health and safety, competency through effective record 
keeping is vital to any defence. We are now in a good position to be able to demonstrate we have a 
good health and safety record; however, we must not become complacent, and must remain ready to 

prepare for future changes in legislation and guidance and respond to these accordingly. 
 
The continued support and leadership of the Chief Executive, Deputy Chief Executive, Executive 
Directors, Heads of Service, Managers, staff, Trades Unions and Elected Members is the key to 
driving forward health and safety standards. This in turn assists us in reducing accidents, reducing ill 
health, and improving the working environment.  
 
We should look positively to the opportunities and challenges of the next 12 months as we continue to 
work together in new ways achieving our goals and, ultimately underpinning and further protecting a 
sustainable working future for our staff, and those affected by what we do. 

 
 
 
David G Owen 
Corporate Health and Safety Adviser 
August 3rd, 2021 

 
 

   

Page 72



 
DGO Annual Report 2019-2020 - October 21st, 2020 1 

Appendix 1 
 

 
                                      

P
age 73



 
DGO Annual Report 2019-2020 - October 21st, 2020 2 

Appendix 2 

 

 
              

P
age 74



 
DGO Annual Report 2019-2020 - October 21st, 2020 3 

Appendix 3   
 

 
 

P
age 75



 
DGO Annual Report 2019-2020 - October 21st, 2020 4 

                     

Appendix 4 
 

 
 

P
age 76



 
DGO Annual Report 2019-2020 - October 21st, 2020 5 

                    

Appendix 5 – Report Categories 
 
 
Accident/Incident Totals 
    
 2018/2019 2019/20 2020/21 

Total Number of Accidents/Incidents 15 27 18 

Breakdown of numbers    

Near Miss 0 2 11 

Threat 8 13 0 

Accidents 15 12 3 

    Of those Accidents RIDDOR reportable 5 2 1 
 
 
 

Type of Accident 2018/2019 2019/20 2020/21 

    
Contact with Machinery 1 0 0 

Exposed to Dangerous Substance 1 1 0 

Fall from Height 0 0 0 

Hit by Vehicle 0 1 0 

Hit by Flying/Moving Object 1 1 0 

Hit by something Static 2 0 0 

Injured by an Animal 0 0 0 

Manual Handling 4 3 0 

Slip/Trip/Fall 6 2 1 

Physical Assault 0 1 0 

Contact with electricity or electrical discharge 0 0 0 

Other type of accident  0 3 2 

Threat 8 13 0 

 

P
age 77



T
his page is intentionally left blank



  

 
STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

Resources Overview & Scrutiny Panel 
 

17 November 2021 
 

 

TITLE: 
 

Use of Enforcement Agents 
 
PORTFOLIO HOLDER: 

 

Councillor Ralphs - Council Leader SMDC 
 
CONTACT OFFICER: 

 
John Betts - Interim Executive Director 

Finance and Revenues & Benefits 
 
WARDS INVOLVED: 

 

 

All 

 

 
1. Reason for the Report  

 

1.1 At the previous meeting of the committee (on 22 September 2021) there was a 
request for a report on the use of enforcement agents.   

 
2. Recommendations 

2.1 That the Committee notes the contents of this report.  

 
3. Executive Summary 

 

3.1 The Council currently utilises Enforcement Agents (EAs) to undertake 

enforcement action after a liability order has been obtained from the 

magistrates court. Enforcement Agents were previously referred to as “bailiffs”. 

The Enforcement Agents work to a set of principles agreed with the Council 

and in keeping with the Taking Control of Goods Regulations of 2013 and 

2014. The Council has also agreed with the Enforcement Agents a set of 

principles when seeking recovery of debts from those who may be considered 

vulnerable. Management within the Revenue & Benefits service have regular 

monitoring meetings with enforcement liaison officers, including reviewing 

performance against Service Level Agreements set by the Council.  

 

 

4.       How this Report Links to Corporate Priorities  
 

4.1 The report contributes primarily to Aim 2 – to use resources effectively and 

provide value for money and also Aim 1 - to help create a safer and healthier 
environment: for our communities to live and work, by helping citizens to 

manage their debt, rather than resort to illegal money lenders such as loan 
sharks.   

 

Page 79

Agenda Item 11



  

5.       Options and Analysis 
 

5.1 There are options to not use Enforcement Agents, but this would not provide 

value for money (as unpaid debts would rise). Previous analysis has indicated 
that using  Enforcement Agents is less expensive than creating an in-house 

service, due primarily to high levels of overheads (for example, management 
and training costs and costs incurred in respect of taking possession of goods 
and for the sale of goods).  

 
6. Implications 
 

6.1 Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998) 
None. 
 

6.2 Workforce 
None. 
 

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment 

This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's Equality and 
Diversity policies. 

 
6.4 Financial Considerations 

The need to balance the protection to council tax (and business rates) payers 

with the need to ensure proportionate action is taken to recover debt alongside 
the consideration of vulnerable citizens is considered in the report.   

  
6.5 Legal 

The impact of the Taking Control of Goods Regulations 2013 & 2014 and the 

Debt Respite Scheme (Breathing Space Moratorium and Mental Health Crisis 
Moratorium) (England and Wales) Regulations 2020 are all contained in the 

report.  
 

16.6 Sustainability 

None 
  

6.7   External Consultation 
  None 
 

 
6.8   External Consultation 

  None 
 

1.  
 

Risk analysis 

Risks are considered in the body of the report.  

JOHN BETTS 
Interim Executive Director Finance and Revenues & Benefits 

 
 

Web Links and 
Background Papers 

Location Contact details 

 

 

 

Moorlands House 

 

John.betts@highpeak.gov.uk 
07581 010628 

Page 80

mailto:John.betts@highpeak.gov.uk


  

Background 

7.1. At the previous meeting of the committee there was a request for a briefing on 
the use of enforcement agents. The Council currently utilises Enforcement 

Agents (EAs) to undertake enforcement action after a liability order has been 
obtained from the magistrates court.  

 
7.2. To place this in context, it is helpful to briefly outline the debt recovery 

process. The debt recovery process is based on the following principles: 

 

 Firm but fair application of legislation 

 Consistency of approach – we strive to apply the Council’s policies 
consistently so that individual citizens do not feel they are being 
inequitably treated, relative to others  

 Excellent customer service – although citizens  may not always 
appreciate being chased for payment, the service aims to treat 

debtors sensitively and provide an excellent quality of service and 
that action taken is proportionate   

 Discretion in genuine circumstances only – to ensure consistency of 
approach to all, discretion needs to be managed appropriately, 
ensuring that deviation from normal processes only applies in 

genuine circumstances    

 Increase collection rate – to ensure fair treatment to all council and 

business rate taxpayers, increased collection rates (thereby 
reducing the burden to all) is a goal  

 Encourage Direct Debit take-up – this helps citizens manage the 

repayment of debt and is more efficient for the Council  

 Reduce cost of collection 

 
7.3. These principles are applied as follows (using the council tax debt process as 

an example): 
 

Step 1 - a Reminder Notice is issued 7 days after the instalment is unpaid 

 If the outstanding debt is then paid, the instalment process continues  

 If there is no payment, or only partial payment, then a summons can be 

issued 14 days after.   
 

Step 2 - a Reminder issued for the second default 7 days after the instalment 
is unpaid 

 If the outstanding debt is then paid, the instalment process continues  

 If there is no payment, or only partial payment, then a summons can be 
issued 14 days after  

(NB: a maximum of two reminders will be issued within one financial year) 
 

Step 3  - a Final Notice is issued where an instalment remains outstanding for 
the third time or in respect of previous year arrears 

 In this case the full year’s charge is due and the citizen will only avoid a 

summons if the account is brought up-to-date and a Direct Debit is set 
up.  

 The Council will accept cash arrangements in exceptional 
circumstances at this stage e.g. payment card, online payments etc. 

Page 81



  

 
 
Step 4 Summons  

 Where the final notice remains unpaid a summons can be issued 7 
days later   

 Arrangements can be made and income details requested during this 
period.  

 Also, if the Council holds employer details it will attempt to collect the 

debt via earnings, before sending the liability order to the Enforcement 
Agents. 

 
 

7.4. There are some exceptions to this process that the Council follows. For 
example, Individuals or sole traders who are not VAT registered and are 
struggling with debt  have the ability to put a pause on debt collection activity 

against them for at least 60 days. This is termed a ‘breathing space’1. In 
addition, there is a mental health crisis breathing space available to someone 

who is receiving mental health crisis treatment and this process has some 
stronger protections for the debtor, including lasting as long as the person’s 
mental health crisis treatment, plus 30 days. Debts included in a breathing 

space must be “qualifying debts”. This includes if all instalments for that 
financial year have fallen due and have not been paid. If a debtor has been 

served with a ‘reminder notice’ to pay a council tax bill, the remaining liability 
for the financial year is a qualifying debt. However, council tax liabilities that 
have not yet fallen due are not qualifying debts.  

 
 

7.5. At summons stage a Liability Order (LO) is applied for unless the balance on 
the account is paid in full. The LO secures the debt and gives the go ahead for 
the Council to take enforcement action. This is where “bailiffs”, now known as 

Enforcement Agents, are introduced into the process. Under the Taking 
Control of Goods Regulations (2014) bailiffs became officially known as 

‘enforcement agents’ and the changes introduced aimed to: 
 

 Prevent bailiffs entering homes when only children were present, 

visiting people after 9pm or before 6am, or taking basic domestic 
items such as a cooker or microwave, refrigerator or washing 

machine. 

 Ensure a notice period of seven days is sent before bailiffs can visit 
to take control of goods (although this can be shortened on 

application to a court). 

 Prevent bailiffs from selling goods, unless seven days have passed 

from the date the goods were removed. 

 Introduce a complete set of statutory prescribed forms that must be 

used by bailiffs throughout the taking control of goods process. 

 Introduce further protections for people in vulnerable circumstances. 

 Set a ‘competence criterion’ for entry into the bailiff profession and a 

mandatory training regime. 

                                                 
1
 This is formally known as “The Debt Respite Scheme (Breathing Space Moratorium and Mental Health Crisis 

Moratorium) (England and Wales) Regulations 2020” 

Page 82



  

 
7.6. The Council currently utilises three enforcement companies, with one 

company – Bristow & Sutor – used for the majority of council tax arrears2. As 

part of which, they currently issue a pre-compliance letter, warning of further 

enforcement action after a liability order has been obtained (following checks, 

this information is currently uploaded to the company system from the council 

tax system). The Pre-Compliance Letter is issued by the Enforcement Agents, 

although under the new Enforcement Regulations, this is no longer a 

requirement. It does, therefore, offer the debtor more time to resolve the 

situation. Alternative arrangements for repaying the debt are still acceptable 

at this point in time. The Council focuses on ensuring that payment collection 

services remain ethical and equitable for all and that enforcement charges are 

only incurred by debtors as a measure of last resort; after all reasonable 

attempts have been made to engage with debtors to make arrangements. 

7.7. However, when those avenues have been exhausted then the following post 

Liability Order options are available: 
 

 Attachment of earnings / benefits 

 Enforcement Action (for which additional costs may apply) 

 Charging Orders / Bankruptcy 

 Committal application 

 Write-off 

 
7.8. Enforcement Agents will always try to establish the vulnerability of the debtor 

at the earliest opportunity. Vulnerability does not mean that a person is 
exempt from paying their debts, or that the enforcement agent company 
returns the account back to the Council. It does, however, require the 

company to identify vulnerability and act accordingly.  
 

7.9. The Taking Control of Goods Regulations 2013 (TCoG) make no stipulation 
as to certain categories of vulnerability. Anyone can be vulnerable at any 
time. Where a person is recognised as vulnerable, consideration is always 

given by the Enforcement Agents to their circumstances. Regulation 12 of the 
TCoG (Fees) Regulations 2014 states that they must give: “Adequate 

opportunity to get advice & assistance in relation to the exercise of 
enforcement power”. 

 

7.10. Even after establishing an individual is vulnerable, the Enforcement Agents 
may still be advised to continue with action by the Council. The action they 

take will depend on the severity of the vulnerability and how it affects the 
individuals’ ability to deal with this. In doing so, the Enforcement Agents 

abide by the following principles: 
 

 Always remain calm, professional and patient 

 Encourage disclosure 

                                                 
2
 The other enforcement companies that the Authority engages with are Dukes and JTR Collections.  

Page 83



  

 Establish and understand the severity of the situation 

 Consider how that situation affects the citizen and their ability to 
pay / deal with us 

 Ensure the individual understands the situation 

 Summarise discussions and what happens next with the citizen 

 Consider both internal and external solutions 

 Helping to improve the quality of responses to vulnerability 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 84



  

 
STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

Resources Overview & Scrutiny Panel 
 

17 November 2021 
 

 

TITLE: 
 

Welcome Back Fund Update 
 
PORTFOLIO HOLDER: 

 

Councillor Ralphs - Council Leader SMDC 
 
CONTACT OFFICER: 

 
John Betts - Interim Executive Director 

Finance and Revenues & Benefits 
 
WARDS INVOLVED: 

 

 

All 

 

 
1. Reason for the Report  

 

1.1 At the previous meeting of the Panel there was a request for an update on the 
Council’s use of the Government’s Welcome Back fund.    

 
2. Recommendations 

2.1 That the Committee note the report.  

 
3. Executive Summary 

 

3.1 The Council was awarded a Welcome Back grant of £87,090 and is using this 

grant, alongside underspend from Re-opening High Streets Safely Fund grant, 

to support activities to safely re-open local economies.  

3.2 Service Level Agreements have been agreed with Leek, Cheadle and 

Biddulph town councils to delegate funding to support local activity.  

3.3 Funding is also being used to support distribution of Staffordshire Moorlands 

Christmas gift guide (funded using Additional Resources Grant) to promote 

local shops and town centres. 

3.4 The balance of funding is currently held as a contingency to use in response to 

further lockdowns, but with plans under development for its use in early 2022, 

should this not be required.  

 

4.       How this Report Links to Corporate Priorities  

 

4.1 The activity funded from the grants outlined in this report will support: 
 

Page 85

Agenda Item 12



  

 Aim One – To help create a safer and healthier environment for our 
communities to live and work 

 Aim Three – To help create a strong economy by supporting further 

regeneration of towns and villages.   
 
5.       Options and Analysis 
 

5.1 There are no alternate options to consider at this time. 

 
6. Implications 
 

6.1 Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998) 
None. 
 

6.2 Workforce 
There has been considerable officer time spent supporting delivery, but 
this is drawn from existing resources. 
 

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment 
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's 
Equality and Diversity policies. 

6.4 Financial Considerations 

These are all detailed in the report, in terms of the grant received and 
proposed deployment.   

  
6.5 Legal 

None 

16.6 Sustainability 

None 
 

6.7   External Consultation 
There has been consultation with town councils and volunteers to 

develop local activity. 
 

6.8           Risk A    Risk  Assessment 

The primary risk is around not spending the grant by the end of the 
financial year and will be mitigated by monitoring and implementing 

alternate uses of the grant by the end of the calendar year.    
 

JOHN BETTS 
Interim Executive Director Finance and Revenues & Benefits 

 

 

Web Links and 

Background Papers 

Location Contact details 

 
None 

 
Moorlands House 

 
John.betts@highpeak.gov.uk 

07581 010628 

Page 86

mailto:John.betts@highpeak.gov.uk


  

7. Background 

7.1. In May 2020, the government announced the launch of a Re-opening High 
Streets Safely Fund (RHSSF) to help fund temporary works required for the 

safe reopening of high streets. Due to additional lockdowns, the funding 
agreement was not signed until 21st January 2021 but this awarded the 

Council £87,090 to pay for both retrospective and new temporary works until 
June 2021. 

 

7.2. In March 2021, the government announced the launch of a second fund called 
Welcome Back. This awarded the Council an additional £87,090 to the period 

ending 31st March 2022. This funding is 50% derived from European Regional 
Development Fund (ERDF), meaning that it is subject to both UK and ERDF 
procurement rules and criteria with all spend needing to be agreed by 

Department for Levelling-up, Housing & Communities (DLUHC) in advance. 
  

7.3. The principle uses of the funding must be:  

 Support activities that allow the local authority to safely reopen their 
local economies. e.g. temporary public realm changes  

 Communications and public information activity to promote a safe 
public environment, encourage residents and visitors back and direct 

business-facing activities 

 Support local authorities to develop plans for responding to the 

medium term impact of Covid-19, including through employment of 
temporary staff. 

 
8. Activities:  

 

8.1. Using the initial RHSSF fund, the Council has completed (or has agreed 
funding) for the following activities: 

 Officer salary costs (co-funded) until March 2022 (£32,275) 

 Retailer information folders  (£6,015) 

 Town centre temporary barriers (£2,509) 

 
8.2. The balance of the funding has been incorporated with the Welcome Back 

funding. 
  
8.3. In May 2021, it was agreed that the Council would support  Town Councils to 

take a key role in the delivery of objectives by delegating part of the funding 
directly to them. Service Level Agreements were signed with each of the 

Councils and they have been awarded funding to deliver: 
 

Leek 
Town 

Council 
(£17,800) 

Leek War Memorials spring clean  

 St Edward’s Church Stockwell St 

 Ball Haye Green 

 Nicholson War Memorial Ball Haye St 
 

Events  

 Leek Family Fun day - Local professional entertainment 
agency to deliver mixed entertainment to build footfall to retail 

centre. e.g. Jugglers, Street Magicians. (Completed). 

Page 87



  

 Extra event during Leek Blues/Americana Festival -Family 

venue with opportunity for young people to perform, 
participate in workshops meet up and enjoy 
music.(Completed). 

 Exhibition of a Women’s Land Army project developed by 
Borderland Voices. 

 Leek Community arts project including hire of large room in 
Arts Centre for display by local artists. 

 Young people’s art displayed in retail and associated 
premises within town centre retail area (1st -9th Oct). 

 Laser shows in the lead up to Christmas. 

 Children’s rides selected Saturday and Sunday markets and 
Fridays. 

 

Cheadle 
Town 

Council 
(£15,840) 

Events  

 Music event (completed),  

 Halloween event (completed) 

 Artisan markets x three. 

 

Biddulph 
Town 

Council 
(£18,450) 

Clean pavements within Biddulph town centre, improving the look 
and feel of the High Street.  

 
Additional planting added to shop frontages. Footfall analysis. 
 

Biddulph Guide and town map (digital and paper based) 
 

Events  

 Classic Car Show (completed). 

 Enhancing the Night time economy event. 

 Launch event for Biddulph guide  

 Support for local schools and organisations to create art 

events/ displays around the town (e.g. in the bus hub, shop 
windows, Town Hall, etc.) Materials and publicity 

 Vintage afternoon tea/ planting - Biddulph Local People’s 
Project 

 Halloween Trail - town centre shops  

 Lasers/ entertainment at Christmas lights switch-on 

 

 
8.4. The Council has invested a great deal of officer time into helping the town 

councils and volunteers develop their ideas, support them through preparation 

of risk assessments and permissions as well as ensuring that delivery is in line 
with procurement requirements and other regulations. 

 
8.5. It was originally proposed that the Council would also procure a design and 

marketing agency to develop place marketing products as well as lead on 

installation of welcome back banners attached to lamp posts. However, the 
Council received no responses to the tender, and Highways regulations and 

Conservation areas of much of our town centres has meant that this has been 
difficult to deliver in the short timeframe. The Council therefore sent a change 

Page 88



  

request to DLUHC, which was approved allowing us to re-focus the balance. 
Activities to be funded include the distribution of Shop Local Christmas gift 
guide promoting independent  local shops and covid friendly town centres 

shopping which will go to every household in the district.  
 

8.6. At present, the Council has an unallocated balance of £39,900 which is being 
reserved as a contingency fund in case of further lockdowns and to allow for 
any overspend on the above projects. If this is not required by the end of 

December, plans to utilise this funding will be finalised with a focus on 
welcome back messages for Spring 2022 including further activity to promote 

the town centres and encourage winter break tourism will be commissioned. 
 

 

 
 

Page 89



This page is intentionally left blank



STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

Resources Overview & Scrutiny Panel 
 

17th November 2021 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Appendices Attached 
Appendix A – Centre for Governance and Scrutiny (CfGS) – Scrutiny Review 

Appendix B – Scrutiny Review Workshop – Notes from Breakout Group 
Discussions  
Appendix C – CfGS Recommendations – Suggested Response   

 
 
1. Reason for the Report 
 

1.1 The purpose of this report is consider the response to the feedback provided 

by the Centre for Governance and Scrutiny (CfGS) following completion of 
their recent review of the Council’s Scrutiny arrangements.  

 
 
2. Recommendations 

 
2.1 It is recommended that the Panel:  

 

 Consider the feedback from CfGS as detailed in Appendix A; and  

 Consider the suggested response to the recommendations set out in 

Appendix C.   
 

 
3. Executive Summary 

 

3.1 CfGS were commissioned to conduct a ‘step back’ review of the Council’s 
Overview & Scrutiny arrangements. The review was conducted earlier this 

year and the conclusions were reported back to the Council in April. Their 
report is attached at Appendix A..  

 

3.2 An all member workshop was held in September to enable CfGS to share 
their findings and to provide an opportunity for councillors to give some initial 

feedback. The notes from the discussions at the workshop are attached at 

TITLE: Scrutiny Review 
 
PORTFOLIO HOLDER: Cllr Sybil Ralphs – Leader 

  
CONTACT OFFICER: Andrew Stokes – Chief Executive 

   

WARDS INVOLVED:  Non-Specific 

Page 91

Agenda Item 13



Appendix B. It was suggested and agreed at the workshop that each of the 
Council’s Overview & Scrutiny Panels should be given the opportunity to 

discuss the findings further and consider how the Council should take the 
recommendations forward.    

 
3.3 CfGS make 12 recommendations for improvement. In order to assist 

members of the Panel with their considerations attached at Appendix C is a 

summary of CfGS’s recommendations within a suggested response. 
 

3.4 Following the consideration of this report by all of the Council’s Overview & 
Scrutiny Panels a final report will be prepared for consideration by a meeting 
of the full Council.  

 
 
4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities  
 

4.1 Effective scrutiny is essential in order that the Council can successfully 

achieve its objectives and priorities set out in the Corporate Plan. 
 

 
5. Alternative Options 

 

5.1 There are no options to consider at this stage 
 

 
6. Implications 

 

6.1
  

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998) 
None 

 
6.2 Workforce 

None 

 
6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment 

None 
 

6.4 Financial Considerations 

None 
 

6.5 Legal 
The Council’s Constitution Working Group will need to work 
through the detail of any final proposals for change including 

considering the necessary changes to the Council’s Constitution  
 

6.6 Climate Change 
None 

 

6.7 
 

Consultation 
Feedback was provided by the CfGS to an all member workshop 

Page 92



6.8 
 

Risk Assessment 
None 

 
ANDREW P STOKES 

Chief Executive 

 
Web Links and 
Background Papers 

Contact details 

 
As attached to the report 

Andrew Stokes 
Chief Executive 
andrew.stokes@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk 

 

 

  

Page 93

mailto:andrew.stokes@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk


 
7. Background and Introduction 

 
7.1 Maintaining effective scrutiny is a challenge for all local authorities and no 

council can profess excellence in scrutiny across the board – there are always 
areas of weakness which, left untended, can develop into flaws in scrutiny 
which can have a more significant impact on effectiveness overall.  

 
7.2 The Council has not undertaken a comprehensive review of its scrutiny 

arrangements for some time and it was therefore considered to be 
appropriate to conduct a review for two purposes: 

 

 In order to give assurance about existing practices; and 

 Challenge and provide further improvements.  

 
7.3 The Local Government Association (LGA) were approached to ascertain the 

most appropriate way forward for conducting a review. The LGA referred the 
Council to the Centre for Governance and Scrutiny (CfGS).  

 

7.4 The CfGC provides external support to give assurance and advice on 
improving governance in local authorities. They offer a number of 

improvement reviews which help local authorities to evaluate and improve 
their overview and scrutiny functions – governed by the fundamental [“four 
principles” of good scrutiny] that were first developed nearly twenty years ago.  

 
7.5 During the COVID-19 pandemic, CfGS developed ‘step back reviews’. These 

reviews are geared to give the opportunity for councils to conduct short, sharp 
reviews to identify lessons learned to inform the approach to any new 
arrangements that emerge for the ‘new normal’. The review is designed to be 

challenging, but essentially also to be constructive in suggesting ways to drive 
forward improvement.  

 
7.6 Consequently with the support of the Council’s political group leaders, CfGS 

were commissioned to conduct a ‘step back’ review. The LGA agreed to fund 

50% of the cost of conducting the review. 
 

7.7 The review was conducted earlier this year and the conclusions were reported 
back to the Council in April. An all member workshop was held in September 
to enable the CfGS to share their findings and to provide an opportunity for 

councillors to give some initial feedback. 
 
7.8 It was suggested and agreed at the workshop that each of the Council’s 

Overview & Scrutiny Panels should be given the opportunity to discuss the 
findings further and consider how the Council should take the 

recommendations forward.    
 
 
8 CfGS Review 

  

8.1 The review was short and simple based on assessing the following:  

Page 94



  
 Culture. The relationships, communication and behaviours underpinning 

the operation of the overview and scrutiny process. This will also involve 
the Council’s corporate approach, organisational commitment, and status 

of scrutiny.  
 Member engagement. Are members motivated and engaged. How do 

they participate, take responsibility, and self-manage their role?  
 Member skills and application. Are skills up-to-date and can Members 

participate fully or are there development gaps?  

 Information. How information is prepared, shared, accessed and used in 

the service of the scrutiny function.  

 Impact. Ways to ensure that scrutiny is effective, that it makes a tangible 

and positive difference to the effectiveness of the council, and to local 

people.   
 Focus. How prioritisation, timeliness and relevance of the work 

programme and agendas lead to value-adding and productivity.   

 Structure. Formats used by scrutiny to carry out its works and their 

effectiveness.   

  
8.2 It involved conversations with members and officers, observation of meetings 

(recordings or live online), a review of key documents; agendas, work 
programmes etc and a short member survey.  

  

8.3 This methodology aligns with both latest statutory guidance and best practice 
experience accumulated by CfGS over many years. This review therefore 

evaluated the Council’s approach to scrutiny in the light of the guidance and 
best-practice with a view to help to explore with members ways to improve 
scrutiny.  

 
  
9 Outcome from the Review 

 
9.1 CfGS’s report back to the Council following completion of the review is 

attached at Appendix A. 
 
9.2 CfGS concluded that ‘Scrutiny has the conditions for success’ and further 

that ‘there are no critical issues for scrutiny at SMDC and the 
contributions that scrutiny makes are seen as mostly positive’. 

  
9.3 The Council wide buy-in for scrutiny was recognised, and there was 

significant praise given to the Democratic Services team and all officers 

involved in supporting scrutiny at SMDC. 
  

9.4 During the feedback given to CFGS throughout the review, working groups 
were highlighted as a model example of successful scrutiny. Both members 
and officers consider they have worked well and there is strong evidence of 

them making an impact on issues such as waste and recycling services. It 
was noted by CfGS that it would be valuable to learn what makes working 

groups successful in SMDC, continuing those activities, and applying these 
techniques to committee working or expanding their use. 

Page 95



 
9.5 CfGS provided feedback on the following issues: 

 

 Clarity on scrutiny’s role and responsibilities 

 Collaborative approach to scrutiny 

 Scrutiny – Executive relationship 

 Scrutiny’s focus 

 Work programming 

 Meeting preparation 

 Chairing 

 Member development 

 Committee structure and timetabling 

 External engagement 

 
9.6 CfGS make 12 recommendations for improvement. These are detailed in the 

report attached at Appendix A.  
 

 
10 Taking the Recommendations Forward 

 

10.1  CfGS presented their report to an all member workshop which was held on 
29th September 2021. Members had the opportunity to feedback their initial 

thoughts on the findings contained within the report. A summary of the 
discussion at the workshop is attached at Appendix B. 

 

10.2 It was agreed at this workshop that each of the Council’s Overview & Scrutiny 
Panels should have the opportunity to discuss the findings further at their next 

meetings. 
 
10.3 In order to be helpful, attached at Appendix C is a summary of CfGS’s 

recommendations within a suggested response. 
 

10.4 The suggested improvements are as follows:  
 
 Member Development 

 Programme of training / development for non-executive councillors  

 Ongoing training and development for Chairs / Vice Chairs of Scrutiny 

 
Cabinet / Scrutiny Relationship 

 Review Executive / Scrutiny Protocol 

 
Scrutiny Work Programming  

 Establish Overview & Scrutiny Programming Group including Cabinet / O 
& S Panel Chairs / Opposition Group Leaders to review and monitor 

Scrutiny Work Programmes 

 Annual scrutiny workshop to confirm Work Programmes 

 Reorder Overview & Scrutiny Panel’s agendas to consider work 
programming at the start of the meeting  

 

Page 96



Meeting Preparation 

 Develop approach with Chairs of Panels to consider pre-meetings and 

preparation work  
 

Committee Structure & Timetabling 

 Review number of Overview & Scrutiny Panels 

 Consider structure of Panels and potential to create sub-groups to focus 
on specific areas of work  

 Explore and experiment with ways to allow greater public access, 

openness and involvement 
 

10.5 Following the consideration of this report by all of the Council’s Overview & 
Scrutiny Panels a final report will be prepared for consideration by a meeting 
of the full Council. The Council’s Constitution Working Group will need to then 

work through the detail including the necessary changes to the Council’s 
Constitution. 

 

Page 97



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Andrew Stokes 

Chief Executive 

Staffordshire Moorlands District Council 

April 2021 

 

Dear Andrew, 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           
Short Scrutiny Improvement Review – CfGS consultancy support 

I am writing to thank you for inviting the Centre for Governance and Scrutiny (CfGS) to carry out an 
evaluation of the Council’s scrutiny function. This letter provides feedback on our review findings 
and offers suggestions on how the Council could develop its scrutiny process. We would like the 
opportunity as part of this process to facilitate a workshop with Members and Officers, to reflect on 
this review and to discuss options for improvement. 

 

Background Following a successful review at High Peak Borough Council, Staffordshire Moorlands District Council (SMDC) commissioned CfGS to review the Council’s scrutiny arrangements through its Scrutiny Panels.  

The purpose of the review was to give the Council an external perspective on how well the current 
model of scrutiny is functioning, and fulfilling its essential role of policy shaping, holding the 
Executive to account and reviewing issues of importance to local communities. 
 
CfGS undertook a review of the current scrutiny arrangements, involving two days of evidence 
gathering through conversations with Members and Officers on 18th and 19th January 2021. In 
addition, we observed Scrutiny Panel meetings, reviewed key documents, and created and 
analysed a Member survey. 
 
CfGS met with 16 Members and 5 Officers, including the Council Leader, Group Leaders, Scrutiny 
Chairs, Members of the Scrutiny Panels, the Council’s senior leadership team as well as 
Governance and Democratic Services Officers. 
 
The review was conducted by the CfGS staff: 

 Jacqui McKinlay – Chief Executive - Centre for Governance and Scrutiny 

 Kate Grigg – Senior Research Officer – Centre for Governance and Scrutiny 

 
The findings and recommendations presented in this letter are intended to advise SMDC in 
strengthening the quality of scrutiny activities, increasing the impact of its outputs, and through its 
Members, to develop a strong and shared understanding of the role and capability of the scrutiny 
function. 
 
 
 
 
 
Summary of findings 

 
1. Positive areas to build upon 

 
1.1. Scrutiny has the conditions for success 

Page 99



 

 

 
Overall, there are no critical issues with scrutiny at SMDC and the contributions that scrutiny 
makes are seen as mostly positive. It was recognised that improvement was needed to ensure the 
time and resource dedicated to scrutiny delivered more impact and greater value. 
 
The conditions for successful scrutiny are present at SMDC; scrutiny enjoys significant support 
from senior Officers and democratic services, the Executive recognises the benefits of scrutiny in 
good governance, and Members of scrutiny want to ensure improved outcomes for communities. 

Considering the changes in SMDC’s political composition since the 2019 local elections, there is 
now a need for the Council to reflect on how they to adapt existing ways of working that embraces 
and responds to more effective and robust challenge. Scrutiny itself should remain politically 
neutral but the dynamics have obviously altered, creating an opportunity for Scrutiny Members, 
and the Executive, to consider its role and how they best work together to challenge, support and 
advise. 

1.2. Officer support 

 
At the senior Officer level there is wide buy-in for scrutiny and it is clear that the Council’s 
corporate management team is committed to supporting scrutiny. In addition, the relevant Director 
being assigned to each committee sends a message of organisational commitment across the 
Council and is seen as adding value to the work of each panel.  
 

We would like to highlight the praise given to the democratic services team and all Officers 
involved in supporting scrutiny at SMDC. Unprompted comments were made to us about the 
quality and responsiveness of Officer support, and the feedback from Members is amongst the 
most positive we have heard when conducting reviews.  
 

1.4. Working groups 

When asked about the most successful scrutiny work at SMDC, many answers nominated the 
working groups as a model example. Members and Officers consider they have worked well and 
there is strong evidence of them making an impact on issues such as waste and recycling 
services.  

It would be valuable to learn what makes working groups successful in SMDC, continuing those 
activities, and applying these techniques to committee working or expanding their use. 
 

2. Suggested areas of improvement 
 
2.1. Clarity on scrutiny’s role and responsibilities 

 

Scrutiny’s overall role is to hold the Executive to account, to carry out policy development, 
contribute to improved decision-making, and channel the voice of the public. Generally, this role is 
well understood, and most Members are able to articulate the purpose and contribution scrutiny 
should be making. However, it appears that in practice, challenge is not as robust as it ought to be 
from Members of the administration, and some felt that scrutiny was sometimes being used by the 
opposition for political purposes.  

 Our conversations suggest a need for more clarity on how scrutiny’s role is undertaken in a 
cross-party manner. This is about developing a shared understanding of the particular and 
unique way for scrutiny to add value to council governance. On a strategic level, there 
needs to be more of an emphasis on seeing scrutiny as a vital part of council business and 
governance, with clear ownership regarding its important role in improving policy and 
holding to account.  

Page 100



 

 

 
2.2. Collaborative approach to scrutiny 

 

Scrutiny is meant to be a forum for the evidence-based discussion of issues affecting local people. 
Most agreed with the principle that scrutiny is more effective when it is a collaborative approach 
between Members, with politics left at the door (as much as is practicably possible), and an equal 
voice given to all. Members recognised this and could give examples of when scrutiny has dealt 
with contentious matters, and the importance of having strong and productive working relationships 
within committees. 

There is evidence that the tone taken in questioning within scrutiny can at times be perceived as 
combative rather than constructive, which diminishes scrutiny as a forum for open and candid 
exchange. Members should have regard to the expectations set out in the Council’s Member Code 
of Conduct regarding respectful behaviour and leading by example. 

There is a mixed level of engagement from some scrutiny Members, and as indicated, Members of 
the opposition tend to show greater levels of involvement within committee meetings. Effective 
challenge from all Members of scrutiny and an active opposition are healthy governance 
behaviours in any democratic body.  

 There was a broad agreement that all Members have a duty to uphold their responsibilities 
as a scrutineer, attend meetings and work towards a shared goal in their committee. This is 
an aspect that needs further emphasis. 
 

2.3. Scrutiny – Executive relationship 

 
It is important to have a culture of trust, transparency and mutual respect between scrutiny and the 
Executive, to enable open and candid exchanges. Without regular communication and information 
sharing, scrutiny will be unable to act in a supportive capacity to the Executive. Positive 
engagement between the Executive and scrutiny, both formal and informal, is vital to the scrutiny 
process. 
 
We heard that overall, there is limited challenge of Executive decisions, with opposition Members 
tending to undertake this vital task of scrutiny. To achieve effective democratic accountability 
scrutiny, through collective endeavour, needs to focus on the Executive, ensuring questions are 
directed to the relevant portfolio holder and focused on clear priorities. 
  
There is evidence of Officers in some cases being scrutinised more than Executive Members. The 
experience from elsewhere is that when Executive Members attend and are the focus of the 
questioning, a more strategic exchange takes place and better recommendations achieved. 
 
The ‘Protocol on Portfolio Holders’ Involvement in the Scrutiny Process’ in SMDC’s constitution 
highlights regular engagement and the benefit scrutiny receives from Executive Members’ 
expertise in their given portfolio, as well as the benefit the Executive receives from scrutiny’s 
feedback.  
 

 SMDC may consider reviewing the Executive-Scrutiny protocol to outline and reaffirm 
expectations, and to improve communication and co-ordination between scrutiny and the 
Executive. An Executive-Scrutiny protocol should deal with the practical workings of 
scrutiny as well as the cultural dynamics. It might also be useful for feedback on scrutiny’s 
recommendations to be formalised within the protocol, in order for the panels to monitor the 
progress of their output.  

 
2.4. Scrutiny’s focus 

 

Page 101



 

 

There is a recognition that scrutiny needs to focus more on strategic issues, where it can have 
influence, and that scrutiny should input into the decision-making process at an earlier stage than it 
does currently. The overall high quality of scrutiny’s working groups is evidence that this part of the 
system is working well. However, scrutiny work in committee does not always benefit from the 
same focus.  
 
Scrutiny should focus its attention on cross-cutting issues which affect communities across the 
district, avoiding parochial issues affecting single wards. There are missed opportunities for 
scrutiny to add value and to be an integral part of the Council’s corporate plans and overall 
improvement.  
 

 For scrutiny to be more strategic there needs to be change from both scrutiny and the 
Executive. If the Council wants more emphasis on shaping policy, challenging and holding 
to account, then scrutiny will need earlier access to and involvement with the core policy 
and decision-making activities of the Executive. 

 
There are some examples of duplication, in the Health Scrutiny Panel we heard of the same issues 
being considered by SMDC and the County Council’s health scrutiny - dedicating time to issues 
which are unlikely to change or be influenced by recommendations.  
 
Some panels would benefit from a clearer focus on where the committee can add value or 
influence change. For the majority of the substantive items on scrutiny agendas there is not a 
clearly articulated outcome from scrutiny’s consideration of the topic. When topics are reviewed the 
focus tends to be operational rather than strategic or outcome focused. Often, reports do not ask 
Members to “do” anything other than to note them and recommendations at the scrutiny meetings 
could also be sharper in their focus.  
 

 We noted that scrutiny could be more involved in the budget process, and at an earlier 
stage for any meaningful input. Scrutinising the Council’s finances, including the medium-
term financial plan, monitoring financial and operational performance, together with 
commercial partnerships and other external arrangements does not seem to be sufficiently 
explored.  

 
We have produced guidance, in partnership with CIPFA, on financial scrutiny1 setting out scrutiny 
activity to complement the council’s annual financial cycle. The guide suggests ways to move 
budget and finance scrutiny beyond set-piece scrutiny ‘events’ in December and quarterly financial 
performance scorecards being reported to committee. 
 

2.5. Work programming 
 
Work programming is key to ensuring scrutiny stays focussed on strategic issues where it can 
make an impact, whilst making the best use of time and resources. In this respect prioritisation is 
essential, and scrutiny could benefit from an agreed methodology to filter and select topics for the 
work programme (we have provided some examples of scrutiny work programming 
selection/prioritisation tools in the Appendix). Furthermore, scrutiny will need to organise a work 
programme that is Member-led in order to have ownership over committee activity.  
 
Work programming does appear to be more effective in Resources Scrutiny Panel, than other 
committees.  
 

                                                 
1
 CfGS & CIPFA (2020) ‘Financial scrutiny, practice guide’ - https://www.cfgs.org.uk/wp-

content/uploads/Financial-scrutiny-practice-guide_proof3.pdf  

Page 102

https://www.cfgs.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/Financial-scrutiny-practice-guide_proof3.pdf
https://www.cfgs.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/Financial-scrutiny-practice-guide_proof3.pdf


 

 

 We recommend an annual process for developing the work programme across all of the 
scrutiny committees, engaging Members, Officers, partners and the public to prioritise the 
topics for review. This will help avoid duplication and ensure that Members’ work in scrutiny 
makes the most effective contribution possible on the most important issues to the district. 
Work programming could take place through a Member workshop, where a shortlist of 
priority topics for the next 12 months are identified according to a selection criteria, 
discussed on their merit for scrutiny, and voted on.  

 
It is important to emphasise that work programming is an ongoing process and not just a one-off 
event. Whilst a workshop will help identify priorities and provide structure to work for the months 
ahead, there will need to be flexibility in the work programme and time set aside to regularly revisit 
the relevance of topics as the local context changes.  
 

 Currently the work programme is the last item on the agenda at scrutiny meetings, we 
would recommend bringing it to the beginning, so it can benefit from more considered 
discussion rather than being subject to the inevitable end of meeting fatigue.  
 

2.6. Meeting preparation 
 

From our observations of committees, there is little evidence of co-ordinated questions (outside of 
the designated portfolio holder question time) or Members acting as a team with clear lines of 
inquiry. It has been highlighted that a number of Members do not prepare sufficiently for scrutiny 
meetings, leading to the presentation of Officer reports that should have been read in advance and 
a missed opportunity for insightful questioning. It is important the time spent in committee is well 
spent.  

A small number of Members felt that reports were long and make demanding reading, which may 
prevent some Members from fully engaging. The practice of submitting reports for noting, for 
information, or inviting speakers only to share information, should be avoided. All of the above 
measures regarding meeting preparation will result in shorter, sharper meetings. 

 SMDC should consider introducing pre-meetings before formal committee between all 
scrutiny Members to provide the space to set common objectives and possibly to reach 
consensus on lines of enquiry and questioning strategy.  

 
2.7. Chairing 

 

Scrutiny’s success is dependent on the right Members, with the right capabilities and attributes, 
leading and managing the scrutiny function. Current chairs at SMDC have varying levels of 
confidence in being able to lead and manage the scrutiny function in a timely and effective manner. 

Chairs have an important role in providing leadership, modelling constructive behaviour and 
ensuring well managed meetings. In some committee meetings, chairs failed to keep meetings on 
track by allowing lengthy contributions, drift or repetition. For every item on the agenda there 
should be an overall purpose in scrutinising it, and it is the role of the chair to focus the panel’s 
attention on this - the question should always be ‘Why is this coming to scrutiny and what is its 
purpose?’. 

The lack of opposition Members involved in scrutiny chairing roles was raised as an issue in our 
evidence gathering. There is no single ‘right’ approach to selecting chairs - the emphasis ought to 
be on selecting chairs based on skill set and capability and providing ongoing training and support.  
 

2.8. Member development 

 

Page 103



 

 

Scrutiny provides an excellent opportunity for broader Member engagement and to support 
Members in getting an in-depth understanding of issues. To get the most out of scrutiny, Members 
need a clear sense of what is required of them as panel Members and the work involved which 
allows good scrutiny to happen. This should draw on the Council’s Member code of conduct which 
will help reaffirm expected behaviours. 
 
We observed that the quality of questioning in scrutiny panels varies; in some instances, it is 
forensic and probing, but it is often more general and exploratory and sometimes superficial. 
SMDC is clearly committed to Member development, and training was raised by some Members, 
who were clearly aware of the gaps in their knowledge and understanding.  
 

 We recommend further ‘refresher’ scrutiny training, with an update on scrutiny essentials, 
as well as a specific focus on good questioning skills and chairing skills. Since the use of 
call-in has increased it might be appropriate to include in the scrutiny refresher training to 
ensure understanding of its purpose. For some Members, a more bespoke approach 
through coaching, mentoring or one-to-one training may be more effective to achieve the 
standards desired by Members and the Council.  

 

2.9. Committee structure and timetabling 

 
Changing the structure of scrutiny committees is rarely a universal solution to bring about 
immediate changes, the cultural issues are more important. However, we received feedback from 
the majority of interviewees (Members and Officers) that the current structure of four scrutiny 
committees for a council the size of SMDC is not the most effective use of resources. 
 
The council’s internal review of scrutiny in 2014/15 identified local authorities of a similar size to 
SMDC tend to operate with less scrutiny committees. 

 We would advise SMDC to review the number of committees. The Health Scrutiny Panel 
often deals with matters outside the Council’s responsibility and duplication with County 
Council health scrutiny was reported. Merging the Health Panel with the Communities 
Panel is one option, as there appears to be significant crossover between the two, this 
would enable Officer and Member resources to be more focussed.  

 The 19 Members sitting on each panel is also a very high number to enable effective 
scrutiny and provide opportunities for everyone to engage. A reduction in committee 
Membership should also be considered.  

Currently the scrutiny committees at SMDC tend to meet on a cycle that falls shortly before 
Cabinet, which can inevitably lead to a focus on upcoming Cabinet decisions, rather than focussing 
on scrutiny’s independent work plan.  
 
Effective forward planning should allow for scrutiny to be forewarned months in advance of 
particularly critical decisions. Scheduling scrutiny meetings further upstream of the decision-
making process and meeting more frequently, but with shorter and more focused agendas, can 
relieve the burden of longer meeting cycles. Such forward planning also helps with fitting greater 
pre-decision scrutiny into the committee cycle. 
 

 In terms of both the number of committees and frequency of meetings at SMDC, there are 
clear advantages of having fewer committees which meet on a more regular basis.  

 

2.10. External engagement 

Page 104



 

 

It has been highlighted that many presentations from outside bodies to some panels are regarded 
as ‘show and tell’ sessions. In carrying out ‘external’ scrutiny work, it is important to ensure that 
scrutiny has a clear focus on objectives and is able to influence outcomes concerning the topic 
discussed.  

Regarding public engagement, scrutiny could explore and experiment with ways to allow greater 
access, openness and involvement. This could include inviting the public to offer ideas for work 
programmes and greater use of social media channels for resident input and communicating the 
progress and impact of scrutiny work. 

 
Thank you and acknowledgements 

 
This short review forms part of a Member development programme which includes training and 
development sessions to be facilitated by CfGS. 
 
We would like to thank the Chairs, Scrutiny Panel Members, Executive Members, and Officers who 
took part in interviews and the survey for their time, insights and open views.  
 
Yours sincerely,   
 
Kate Grigg 
Senior Research Officer / Review Lead 
  

Page 105



 

 

Appendix – Examples of scrutiny work programming selection/prioritisation tools 
 
Waverley Borough Council2 

 

                                                 
2
https://www.waverley.gov.uk/download/downloads/id/5879/selection_criteria_for_overview_and_scrutiny_to

pics.pdf 
 

Page 106

https://www.waverley.gov.uk/download/downloads/id/5879/selection_criteria_for_overview_and_scrutiny_topics.pdf
https://www.waverley.gov.uk/download/downloads/id/5879/selection_criteria_for_overview_and_scrutiny_topics.pdf


 

 

South Cambridgeshire District Council3   

                                                 
3
https://scambs.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s50149/Criteria%20for%20Scrutiny%20and%20Overview%20

Topic%20Selection.pdf 

Page 107

https://scambs.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s50149/Criteria%20for%20Scrutiny%20and%20Overview%20Topic%20Selection.pdf
https://scambs.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s50149/Criteria%20for%20Scrutiny%20and%20Overview%20Topic%20Selection.pdf


 

 

Warwickshire County Council4 

 

                                                 
4
 https://api.warwickshire.gov.uk/documents/WCCC-970-53 

Page 108

https://api.warwickshire.gov.uk/documents/WCCC-970-53


Scrutiny Review Workshop 
Breakout Room Notes 

29 September 2021 

 
Room 1  
 

Cllrs Atkins, Bowen, Flunder, Gledhill, Hall, Herdman 

Andrew Stokes, Sarah Porru Sally Hampton 
 

 Due to the major changes with Health and Social Care some members were 
reluctant for the Health & Community Panels to be merged. Much consideration 
also needed to be given to environmental/climate change items. There could be 

occasions when it would be more effective for the 2 Panels to join on certain 
subjects.  

 There should be a degree of flexibility as to when scrutiny panels met, meetings 
should be shorter, focus on more topical strategic issues and meet more 

frequently. Presentations should not be overlong. 

 Duplication may occur if matters were dealt with by the County’s Health & Care 
Committee and the SMDC Health Panel. It was highlighted that the Health Panel 

should focus on matters which were specific to the Moorlands. 

 There were suggestions for the Health Panel to consider Primary Care and 

matters occurring outside of the County. 

 Some members were of the opinion that they needed to feel they had more 

ownership of the improvement to policies 

 More recommendations needed to be made by scrutiny panels and fewer reports 
should be received for noting. 

 Pre-meetings were welcomed to assist with a questioning strategy and to ensure 
members were better prepared. 

 There was agreement that more questions were required from members of the 
ruling group and an analysis of member participation at meetings was requested. 

A suggestion was made for Chairs to encourage more questions during 
meetings. 

 The level of public involvement in meetings should be increased and the Council 

should publicise the work carried out by the scrutiny panels. 
 

 
Room 2 
 

Cllrs Hart, Hawkins, Holmes, Hoptroff, Jackson 
Tanya Cooper, Pat Trafford 

 

 Poor response to questionnaire – more needed. 

 Agenda items arrive too late and often too big.  

 SMDC not informing the public what we’re doing e.g. Climate Change. As a result 
– rarely any feedback. 

 Many members left in the cold. Scrutiny seems to be on a decision, not an idea. 

 Recent Call-ins were badly put together. 

 Questions need to be put directly to Portfolio Holders in advance to give chance 
to prepare an answer. 

Page 109



 Lack of involvement from Conservative members of Panels – silenced by the 
Leader. 

 Huge agendas – too much too late. Needs bite-size chunks. 

 Some members don’t read in advance. Not the case at Resources. 

 Resources – more able to pick out a relevant section to concentrate on. 

 Need a ‘progress’ column in the WP, should be earlier in the agenda. 

 Need more Panels with fewer members & smaller spheres of influence. 

 Panels should be equal balance politically. 

 Need less Panels – 3 ideal. 

 Pre-meetings - won’t work if cross-party. Labour already do their own. 

 Pre-meetings - good where external guests are attending so that questions can 
be co-ordinated. Not needed if no guests. 

 
 
Room 3  

 

Cllrs Jones, Page, Plant, Price, Riley,  
Neil Rodgers, Jacqui McKinlay 

 

 Sceptical/ dismissive that members skills are considered when choosing 

committee chairs.  

 Keen to see a members’ skills audit take place so the leader know what’s about 

each members’ experience and skills and what they can bring to different roles 
and committees. 

 Concern about the accessibility of meetings and opportunities due to the timings 
of meeting for those people working or with caring responsibilities.  

 Concerned about the lack of challenge from the ruling group members in 

committee meetings. The opposition do lots of preparation and some others are 
not reading the papers.  

 Would like to see less presentations and for information items at the meetings.  

 A view that there is not enough business to keep all the committees busy and this 

leads to them being cancelled at the last minute.  

 Some cabinet members do not take scrutiny seriously, if they are there, they do 
take accountability for items.  

 Talk of needing more information to members more widely, rather than using 
scrutiny as a way to keep them informed and leading to more information sharing 

than scrutiny. This would help scrutiny meetings to be more focused.  
 

 
Room 4  

 

Cllrs Coleman, Ralphs, Roberts, Shaw, Sheldon, Swindlehurst, Taylor 
Mark Trillo, Kate Grigg 

 

 Discussion about the value of a pre-meet: some members had reservations 
around a potential doubling-up of work, but the need to keep it short and 

focussed on objectives and lines of inquiry rather than scripting or rehearsing was 
emphasised. 

Page 110



 Some members keen to use the pre-meet to bring their own professional/life 
experience into the process as well as co-ordinating that with other members, 

and take a lead on topics they are knowledgeable about. 

 All members very keen to see more pre-decision scrutiny, and scrutiny getting 

involved at an earlier stage in decision-making. 

 Administration members wanting to ensure that challenge was seen as positive. 

 POLITICS: (formed the bulk of our discussion) all members a bit sceptical about 
scrutiny improvement as politics was seen as such a barrier. Leader very aware 

that politics cannot be removed from the situation and saw it as an issue in 
implementing any changes with scrutiny.  

 Culture perceived by all as very us vs. them and a recognition that unless it is 

properly dealt with and members change the way in which they work then it will 
continue to hinder the process. 

 The size of committees highlighted as an issue, and the fact that all members are 
rarely in attendance – many mentioned reviewing it to consider quality rather than 
quantity. 

 
 

 
 
 

 

 

Page 111



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX C 
 

CfGS – Scrutiny Review Recommendations – Suggested Response 
 

Area CfGS Recommendations Suggested Response 

Member development We recommend further ‘refresher’ scrutiny 
training, with an update on scrutiny 
essentials, as well as a specific focus on 
good questioning skills and chairing skills. 
Since the use of call-in has increased it might 
be appropriate to include in the scrutiny 
refresher training to ensure understanding of 
its purpose. For some Members, a more 
bespoke approach through coaching, 
mentoring or one-to-one training may be 
more effective to achieve the standards 
desired by Members and the Council.  

 Programme of training / 
development for non-executive 
councillors  

 Ongoing training and 
development for Chairs / Vice 
Chairs of Scrutiny 

Clarity on scrutiny’s role and 
responsibilities 
 

Our conversations suggest a need for more 
clarity on how scrutiny’s role is undertaken in 
a cross-party manner. This is about 
developing a shared understanding of the 
particular and unique way for scrutiny to add 
value to council governance. On a strategic 
level, there needs to be more of an emphasis 
on seeing scrutiny as a vital part of council 
business and governance, with clear 
ownership regarding its important role in 
improving policy and holding to account.  
 

Collaborative approach to 
scrutiny 
 

There was a broad agreement that all 
Members have a duty to uphold their 
responsibilities as a scrutineer, attend 
meetings and work towards a shared goal in 
their committee. This is an aspect that needs 
further emphasis. 
 

Scrutiny – Executive relationship 
 

SMDC may consider reviewing the 
Executive-Scrutiny protocol to outline and 
reaffirm expectations, and to improve 
communication and co-ordination between 
scrutiny and the Executive. An Executive-
Scrutiny protocol should deal with the 
practical workings of scrutiny as well as the 
cultural dynamics. It might also be useful for 
feedback on scrutiny’s recommendations to 
be formalised within the protocol, in order for 
the panels to monitor the progress of their 
output.  

 Review Executive / Scrutiny 
Protocol 

Scrutiny’s focus 
 

For scrutiny to be more strategic there needs 
to be change from both scrutiny and the 
Executive. If the Council wants more 
emphasis on shaping policy, challenging and 
holding to account, then scrutiny will need 
earlier access to and involvement with the 
core policy and decision-making activities of 
the Executive. 

 Establish Overview & Scrutiny 
Programming Group: 
o Cabinet / O & S Panel Chairs 

/ Opposition Group Leaders 
o Consider Cabinet Work 

Programme and agree 
forward plan of scrutiny 
work 

We noted that scrutiny could be more 
involved in the budget process, and at an 
earlier stage for any meaningful input. 
Scrutinising the Council’s finances, including 
the medium-term financial plan, monitoring 
financial and operational performance, 
together with commercial partnerships and 
other external arrangements does not seem 
to be sufficiently explored.  

Work programming We recommend an annual process for  Annual scrutiny workshop to 

Page 113



Area CfGS Recommendations Suggested Response 
 developing the work programme across all of 

the scrutiny committees, engaging Members, 
Officers, partners and the public to prioritise 
the topics for review. This will help avoid 
duplication and ensure that Members’ work 
in scrutiny makes the most effective 
contribution possible on the most important 
issues to the district. Work programming 
could take place through a Member 
workshop, where a shortlist of priority topics 
for the next 12 months are identified 
according to a selection criteria, discussed 
on their merit for scrutiny, and voted on.  

confirm work programmes 

Currently the work programme is the last 
item on the agenda at scrutiny meetings, we 
would recommend bringing it to the 
beginning, so it can benefit from more 
considered discussion rather than being 
subject to the inevitable end of meeting 
fatigue. 

 Reorder agendas 

Meeting preparation SMDC should consider introducing pre-
meetings before formal committee between 
all scrutiny Members to provide the space to 
set common objectives and possibly to reach 
consensus on lines of enquiry and 
questioning strategy.  

 Develop approach with Chairs of 
Panels 

Committee structure and 
timetabling 
 

We would advise SMDC to review the 
number of committees. The Health Scrutiny 
Panel often deals with matters outside the 
Council’s responsibility and duplication with 
County Council health scrutiny was reported. 
Merging the Health Panel with the 
Communities Panel is one option, as there 
appears to be significant crossover between 
the two, this would enable Officer and 
Member resources to be more focussed.  

 Review number of Overview & 
Scrutiny Panels 

 Consider structure of Panels and 
potential to create sub-groups to 
focus on specific areas of work  

 Explore and experiment with 
ways to allow greater public 
access, openness and 
involvement 

The 19 Members sitting on each panel is 
also a very high number to enable effective 
scrutiny and provide opportunities for 
everyone to engage. A reduction in 
committee Membership should also be 
considered.  
In terms of both the number of committees 
and frequency of meetings at SMDC, there 
are clear advantages of having fewer 
committees which meet on a more regular 
basis.  

 
 
 

 

Page 114



Document is Restricted

Page 115

Agenda Item 15
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 123

Agenda Item 16
By virtue of paragraph(s) 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the previous meeting
	6 Work Programme
	8 2nd Quarter Financial, Procurement & Performance Review 2021/22
	2nd Quarter App A
	2nd Quarter App B
	2nd Quarter App C

	10 Annual Health & Safety Report 2020/2021
	Appendix A 1 for Health and Safety Annual Report 202021

	11 Use of Enforcement Agents
	12 Welcome Back Fund Update
	13 Scrutiny Review - Discussion Item
	Appendix A
	Appendix B
	Appendix C

	15 Ascent Housing Update
	16 2nd Quarter 2021/22 Finance, Procurement & Performance Review - Appendix D

